(n o
ANNUAL REPORT

2024
R

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited
REEFIZERBIR AT

(Incorporated under the laws of Bermuda with limited liability)
TWG (REEREEGIMAUNERAS)

Stock Code A& 12 L35 : 2119 * For identification purposes only {Eft# 5



CONTENTS
H &%

Definitions

B

Corporate Information

NAEER

Chairman’s Statement

FRWmE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE AR R

Directors and Senior Management
EENERERE

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRSE

Directors’ Report
EXgRE

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 1% BUAD ¥ 5

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
reEBEmEEK

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
meE2ERER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RA B &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARZEHE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R M

Five Year Financial Summary

hFEMEHE

17

23

o1

67

75

76

7

79

81

83

190



Eup E |

%
gi‘%ﬁm I

Definitions

e

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires,
the following expressions shall have the following meanings.

“B2B”
[ B2B |

“B2C”
[ B2C ]

“Board”
-

“CG Code”
[ REAT A

“Companies Ordinance”

INCIRESEN

“Company” or “the
Company”

ZAYNCIN

“Director(s)”

[E %]

“ESG”
[RE - -1HeakEeha]

“Group”
[A&EE ]

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
&%)

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK

dollars” or “HK$”
[ 7]

RAFEHRA RXEAZBEMEN UTHAER
B NHHE -

business to business
EHPE

business to customers
SRS

board of Directors

Exw

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

FIIPR EWRAMBECIWEERE AT

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
and supplemented from time to time
EREMNFEE222E(RANED) - BT EFT RER

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability on 13 June 2000 and, except where the context
otherwise requires, all of its subsidiaries, or where the context refers to the time
before it became the holding company thereof, our Company’s present
subsidiaries

REFEBIZERER AR - R2000F6 A13HE B REFAMA L HERR % QA & (B
NESZSBREMNEMBEMBRARN (HMXBHEEKBERAFANNERE) RAAQ A
B I B A A

the director(s) of the Company

ZN/NSTE- =5

environmental, social and governance
RE -HekeEn

the Company and its subsidiaries
EN/NESIDS ) /N]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of Mainland China
B & BRI IT R

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BREEEE
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Definitions (continued)

2% (E)

“Listing”
[

“Listing Date”

[E A H
“Listing Rules”
[ A8 Al

“Macau”

[VRFT)
“Mainland China” or “PRC”
[Hr B b | sk [ A B

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

=N GE S 308 e
A&l

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[AR# |

“SFO”
(78 7 & H & 15 B ]

“Share Option Scheme”
[ 88 e w51 &1

“Share Option Schemes”
[ZEREIRETE

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Mty OB SR BT E AR BT

11 May 2018, the date which the Company’s shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on
the Stock Exchange

2018F5A11H  RARIRMNE R MW ERB ARG E ZE8 B H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time

BRMARIMBERABES LWHRA - ETRER M

the Macau Special Administrative Region of Mainland China

REDRPFIERIITER R

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this Annual Report,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
REARLANE  RAFHEMS  TEEEE RFIREE

the pre-IPO share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 27 to the financial
statements

RABR2017F12A15B B R ERMAN B R ARBERIBRETS - FHEHREY
¥R Mt 527

prospectus of the Company dated 30 April 2018
RAFHER2018F4A30R 2 MR E R

Renminbi, the lawful currency of Mainland China

AR HFBEEAEE®R

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended and supplemented from time to time
EBEDFESNEE S KBE R (B TRET MR

the share option scheme conditionally approved and adopted by the Company on
15 December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 27 to the financial
statements

RARR2017FE 124158 B IGHHE RO BIRET 2 - FBEH N M B mEKM
o7

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme
BR AR SRR 8 BB Rkt &l

TEONEER ERERZERER QA 3
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Definitions (continued)

Bx(E)

“Share(s)”
[ 17 ]

“Shareholders”

(AR

holder(s) of Shares
EGES TSN

“Stock Exchange”
B 32 B EEBMARIMARRT

In this Annual Report, the terms “connected
person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling shareholder”,
“subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the

meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the

“associate”,

context otherwise requires.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this Annual
Report have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not
be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them.

The English translation of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations in Chinese or another language
included in this Annual Report is for identification purposes
only. To the extent there is any inconsistency between the
Chinese names of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations and their English translations,
the Chinese names shall prevail.

*  For identification purposes only
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ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with a par value of HK$0.10 each

AR B B R o A E (E0.1078 TR B R R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

RARFERA  BXERBAEN [BEAL
(REAL] TBERS] - [EERRR] - THE
RAIRTEEZRRIFFAZH AR £ 5 B
THEARNRE -

REHZMENETERLADLBFENRL
MERARAE - Fih - T RBAMRHLE
AHFRLRELABFOEMAM -

REFABAPXHEMBEXDRNTEE
B0X BR REOERHEEFEMR
Al HAEEE X BR - Rig&EAR
MAXARERENHEFETMERE  #N
RS

Y OERES
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Corporate Information
~ A &EH

As at 6 March 2025

202563 H6H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tat Tong (Chairman)
Ms. Fan Yee Man

Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Timothy John Collins
Mr. Lee Tak Wah

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

Mr. Wong Man Fai

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Man Fai

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy

Nomination Committee

Mr. Wong Tat Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Man Fai

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Wong Man Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Fan Yee Man (HKICPA)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. Fan Yee Man
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard

REGISTERED PUBLIC INTEREST ENTITY

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

Exg
BITES
EBEE N (ER)
5 45 80 /M A
SRS

FHITES
Timothy John Collins %t 4
TEELL

BAIFHITES
WEE XL
EXEEAE
FEARIESR &

EXZEY
BERZEAY
MBS E(ER)
IXESE

B A5 IE 6 4

REZEES
HEERLE(ZE)
EXERE
FEARIESR &

FMEES
EXERE(FE)
HEERL
MWEZ XL

DEWE
BEGGNE (BB TR E)

REAXR
152 455 5/
& IR 76 5 4
af B2 R A 5 B R A% BUED

22K G &t EM F T

TEONEER ERERZERER QA
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As at 6 March 2025
202563 H6H

PRINCIPAL BANKS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE IN BERMUDA
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton, HM 12

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Flats F—J, 11th Floor, Block 1

Kwai Tak Industrial Centre

15-33 Kwai Tak Street

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA

Appleby Global Corporate Services (Bermuda) Ltd

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton, HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17th Floor,

Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.twcoffee.com

STOCK CODE
2119
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FTEERBIT
RERT(EB) AR A
{BAERITHRA A

BREDHRBREE
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12
Bermuda

EREAMSEERTELERME

o

R

AR

2 = 4515-335%
EETEHD
FAEIEFJE

BERERFETHRRE

Appleby Global Corporate Services (Bermuda) Ltd
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton, HM 12

Bermuda

EEABSFERLE
BEFHFERERAA
s

E i E16%

BERE PO

1712

DA AU

www.twcoffee.com

B 42 £ 5%
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Chairman’s Statement

ERWME

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Tsit Wing International
Holdings Limited, | hereby present to you the Company’s
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

During the last year, the Group faced unprecedented
challenges as the global coffee commodity prices reached
historic highs. There was a drastic rise in the price of coffee
beans from US$1.90 per Ib to US$3.20 per Ib from the
beginning to the end of 2024, representing an increase of
approximately 68%. The Group’s assessment indicated that this
volatility was primarily driven by four key factors: (i) supply and
demand dynamics; (i) adverse weather conditions; (i) currency
fluctuations; and (iv) market speculation. Most significantly,
severe drought conditions in Brazil severely impacted the global
coffee supply chain. As Brazil accounted for approximately
30% of global Arabica bean production and represents a
substantial portion of the Group’s coffee bean sourcing, the
reduced harvest had a direct impact on its raw material costs.
The drought-induced supply constraints from this key
producing region created unprecedented pressure on global
coffee commodity prices.

The Group demonstrated remarkable resilience in this
challenging environment. Through strategic fixation of forward
contract to lock pricing and relying on the Group’s extensive
industry expertise, the substantial impact of rising costs in
coffee beans was successfully mitigated. Despite an
approximately 68% cost increase in coffee beans, the Group’s
overall gross profit for 2024 remained constant with slight
increase by 2.2%, reflecting its effective cost management
capabilities.

The Group implemented comprehensive measures to enhance
operational efficiency and maintain competitiveness. Our key
initiatives encompassed a strategic restructuring of PRC
operations to optimise human resources, alongside the
successful completion of our SAP system upgrade which has
yielded measurable cost savings. These initiatives have
positioned the Group favourably against market headwinds
while maintaining our commitment to product quality.

BALRIR

BRERRBLBERERERATNESTZMR B
TE2EHFARDNTEHE024FE12A31B L BEE
B F R o

BEA—F ASEMEYOKENMEAR 2
BMrmRERAELN S MBS ERKH
2024F FHIMBH1.0ETHMAZFENTE
3.20% T ' A 1B4I68% - AEB M HE T -
PIRMESHZIARERLE : ((/HF 2
(VB KRR A 5 (i) [E R FE) R (v) T B
EE BEFREZEEAREABEAKRE £
MR ERRZ T E - BB EE 2R
MRS EE4930% @ Wi AEEMEEE
REE—EEZZHE ZEMHESRKEEAE
ERMEKNAEEEZZE AXRZESINZ
BEZERMNEEZA - S 2IMBER RELE
RAFAREREN °

EMEBHARET  AKERTEBEED N &
RERBEAERSONERT DETEERS
WARFEAREREREANREZR A - K&
RAMBEE AR LRFMEROBATE - #R
PNTFZ AR LR #068% - AR B 702024 5F H) B
BEMNFHT B EFA2.2%  REKAKAEERTT
ZHEM -

AEBETEHER  RITEERE  REH
FEED HAEZTERE P RY T BEE S FREE
EH -HEANER X B TKITHSAPE
B ERABRERARSE  ELERENEE
EMEEHETNNENRANUE - FEERST
B fn E IR AGE o

“EomEsE BEERERARAR 7
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)

ETRHKE (E)

TOWARDS THE FUTURE

While coffee commodity prices continue to present challenges,
reaching more than US$4 per Ib in early 2025, the Group
maintains a strategic and forward-looking approach. The
Group’s decades of industry experience enable it to anticipate
and adapt to market dynamics effectively. In 2025, a significant
milestone in its operational enhancement strategy will be the
commissioning of its new coffee production line located in
Hong Kong. This facility represents a strategic investment that
will enhance the Group’s production capabilities, improve
operational efficiency, and create additional value. The Group is
confident that this advancement in its production infrastructure
will strengthen its competitive position in the market.

The Group remains committed to several strategic priorities
moving forward. continue strengthening its cost
management framework while maximising the operational
benefits of its new coffee production line. In parallel, the Group
is focused on further enhancing operational efficiency across
our business units. The Group will actively explore new growth
opportunities in Hong Kong and the PRC and prudently
capture any potential business. It is confident in its ability to
navigate these challenges while creating sustainable value for
our stakeholders.

It will

APPRECIATION

| wish to take this opportunity to convey my deepest
appreciation to all the staff members for their unwavering
dedication, commitment, and significant
contributions that have defined the Group’s success throughout
the year. My sincere gratitude extends to our business partners
and Shareholders whose steadfast support has been
instrumental to the Group’s business. Looking ahead, | remain
optimistic about the Group’s future and am confident in its
ability to achieve remarkable milestones in its continued path of
growth.

exceptional

Wong Tat Tong
Chairman
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RAEEEEERARE LN —EAEEERE
— BETMUFEERRE - ZRIEAREE
BE AIRAAEEER RELERERLH
EHMEE - AEBREEREEEZRAS
FEEMOMESHRFHALAZER -

AR AEBEDERFHERE 2 - FHEE
SRR EIRAE AR - 2R A BE UK R I TE A EE AR Y
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BREEA RREELE  RERRGEEFE
EfE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEESWmRDMN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the last year, the Group faced significant market
challenges as the price of coffee beans experienced
unprecedented volatility, rising from US$1.90 per Ib to US$3.20
per Ib, representing an increase of approximately 68%. While
the Group’s strategic fixation of forward contracts for coffee
commodity successfully protected margins during the first half
of 2024 through previously secured pricing, the rapid
acceleration of commodity costs in the second half of 2024
posed substantial challenges to its cost structure.

The Hong Kong food service market demonstrated resilience
despite a marginal decline of approximately 0.1% in its overall
sales, according to provisional data from the Census and
Statistics Department. Through effective cost management and
operational optimisation, the Group had a slight increase of
2.2% in gross profit, notwithstanding a significant rise in coffee
costs. This performance reinforced the Group’s leading position
in Hong Kong’s B2B coffee market and enabled further market
share expansion.

In the PRC market, while the National Bureau of Statistics
reported a 3% growth in the revenue of the food and beverage
industry, segment experienced intensified
competition, particularly with aggressive pricing strategies in the
retail chains. In response, the Group adopted a prudent
approach to market expansion, implementing enhanced credit
risk management and maintaining strict oversight of accounts
receivable.

the coffee retail

The Group’s operational enhancement initiatives yielded positive
results, with the completed SAP system upgrade delivering
Additionally, the strategic
restructuring of its PRC operations and streamlining of
manpower have contributed to improved operational efficiency.
These measures,
management initiatives, helped the Group navigate through the
challenges of elevated commodity prices.

measurable cost efficiencies.

together with prudent commodity cost

EKEE

RE—FE AEBEEBREATSUHE - A
B BRAIFMARE RS #8F1.00%T LA
ZEW320%ETT  EIFH68% - BEAEEFE
EMMBEE RRAEOMER - BBRTATHETE
K TE BN IRFE2024F - FHFHE - 152024
FTITH+<FEMAALR EREHERAERE
ERE RPRE -

REBRFRARNTNTHE BB EERR
BB EIHEMBKLN01% B RIRE R
- BEMHFKABRE L HEAEEERA
MAARNETE R EE @I - ENRGIE2.2% ° IEF
RRE - RZEAKEEEFEB2BUILETIHH
BRI MEDBRE-—TEA -

EREMS  BEBERSABLAMERERA
BR3%  EMBFTEREBEFME LHT
EEHCERNAENTEERE - REHE—
B REBRREET IS EREKA - BN
RAEERRE R - IR RS A B AR R ES

g e

AREEMNZESERFRFSEGER  SAPXE
BRIt AR TER S R AT B B A R R o S R
EBNEBREEEARBEEATFABNES &
BREK - ZEEBAREENEMRAEEE
HAEDASERYEMER LR RAE -

TEONEER ERERZERER QA 9



| 2 BB
ﬁi@'g’i

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE 2 (&)

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS
Hong Kong

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue generated in
Hong Kong increased by HK$11.4 milion, or 2.3%, from
HK$492.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
HK$503.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
increase in revenue generated in Hong Kong was primarily
because of the increase in sales of coffee, tea and milk
products as a result of an increase in customers’ demand.

Mainland China

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue generated in
Mainland China decreased by HK$18.8 million, or 8.6%, from
HK$219.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
HK$200.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
decrease in revenue was primarily due to the decrease in the
sales volume of tea and instant products.

Others

In addition, the Group also sells a small
products to Macau and other overseas regions including the
United States, Australia, Canada, Malaysia, Guam, Singapore
and Taiwan through distributors. For the year ended 31
December 2024, revenue generated in other markets slightly
decreased by HK$0.4 million, or 2.3%, from HK$17.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to HK$16.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024. The decrease in revenue was
primarily as a result of a decline in demand from the overseas
market.

portion of our

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT
MARGIN

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a
total revenue of HK$721.1 million, representing a decrease of
HK$7.8 million, or 1.1%, as compared to the year ended 31
December 2023. The decrease in revenue was primarily
decrease in revenue derived in Mainland China. Gross profit for
the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$246.0
million, representing an increase of HK$5.4 million, or 2.2%, as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2023. Gross profit
margin increased from 33.0% for the year ended 31 December
2023 to 34.1% for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
decrease in raw material costs contributed to the improvement
in gross profit margin.
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HE2024F12A31HILFE - RBEBELEHIK
A H & £2023F12A31H I F [ H492.38 &
BT INI1.48 BB T2 3% 28 E£2024F12
AB1H It FEMS08.7TEEB T - REBEAL
B AE Ty E EBRRMBE - R REE®RD
HERRPHEREGMmiES -

R At

HE2024F12A31BHIEFE  RHPBEAESE
B U A B A 2023512 A31H 1F F & #9219.3
BEBILRA18.88 BAEILK8.6%EH £2024
F12A31H It F € #200.58 8 8 7T - AR
DPHEEHRRRRBRAERBEERD -

H it

geoh - REETRB S HE G/ N D EMEE
EBPIREMGIINEE - BIEER RN -
EX BXRET -BES -FMEEReE BHE
20241231 IEFE - RAMTISE £/
ABE22023F12A31H I FEMI73HEH
TTE M T F0.48 88 L k2.3% E # £2024F
12A31H IEFEM16.9B8 BB - WA TY
FEHRBINTISEREER -

EMRERNR

HE2024F12A31H IEFE - AEEHSRIK
A72118 8% T ®E £2023F12A318 1k
FERBRLTSEEBILH11% - WAR DT E
ZHRNFE R EENKRAR LD - 8 220245F
128318 IEFE®EN R246.08 &F T 8
B Z2023F12A31B L FEEINS4H5E B T
52.2% ° F F| F A # £2023F 128318 [k F
[E H33.0% 1% iN & & £2024F12 A31B It F &
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=]
= ©



Eup E |

%
gi‘%ﬁm I

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEESWmRD W (&)

BUSINESS PROSPECT

The business environment in 2025 continues to present
significant challenges, with global coffee commodity prices
reaching historic highs and market volatility affecting the
Group’s operating environment. The Group anticipates these
market dynamics to remain complex in the near term, requiring
careful navigation of the changing business landscape.

Despite these challenges, the Group maintains a strategic
focus on sustainable growth through its comprehensive risk
management initiatives and operational enhancement programs.
The successful implementation of the Group’s SAP system
upgrade and strategic restructuring of the operations in
Mainland China have strengthened our operational foundation.
Furthermore, the commissioning of the Group’s new coffee
production line positions itself advantageously to capture
emerging market opportunities.

The Group will maintain its disciplined approach to business
development, focusing on three key strategic priorities:
optimising production capabilities,
efficiency, and prudently exploring growth opportunities in both
markets in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group will
remain vigilant in managing commodity costs and implementing
cost optimisation initiatives, without compromising its product
quality.

enhancing operational

Looking ahead, while market conditions remain challenging, the
Group is confident in its resilience and ability to navigate
through these headwinds. The Group will continue to
strengthen its market position through strategic initiatives while
maintaining stringent cost control measures to ensure
sustainable value creation for the shareholders and investors of
the Company.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

There was no deregistration of subsidiary, no material
acquisition or disposable of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2024.

XBAR
2025%F ) & B IR 52 1) 70 % A BKER - 2 R0 o
BREREELHS DBRDYEREEY

REM FEEHEREBRUTHECHEHRE -

BEERZFUE  ~EEEEE2EARE
BEENREERTIER  EEBBBEELNAE
AFEERE - ANEEKIEHBSAPR G T
Ao WHPBAMAERETERREEA KM
RIEHMMEELY - BF  BEAKEHRM
CEEEMRKRE  BAKEMGEA RV E AT
MEMISHE -

AEBEBHEBERFEF/BFELDE  BE=X
MRBEER: BLER RE2EMELE
ERRPEMBHENEREE - ~AEEKE
BERMARAMERKABLCRE LREFE
B BREREGEBTZWH -

REMK BEMRKRARK NEB{DEH
BEAFMEL  REARRBENHTE -
AEBESGEEEBEBEBEZETSMMU R
B R4 B RE AR ANHE B 0 - IR R AR BIRR
REEERERFEEE-

Ff B 2~ 7] Y B R
REE2024F12A31H I FE - BEEBE
MEBAR MESEENMNBEARKBxLE -

SEomEsR BRERBERREERAT 1



| 2 BB
ﬁi@'g’i

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE 2 (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by HK$7.8 million, or 1.1%,
from HK$728.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to HK$721.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in revenue
derived from the Group’s tea and instant products in Mainland
China, which was mainly attributable to a decrease in sales
volume of these products as a result of the change of
customers’ demand in Mainland China.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by HK$13.2 million, or
2.7%, from HK$488.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 to HK$475.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2024. The decrease in the cost of sales was primarily
attributable to a decline in overall procurement costs of various
raw materials during the vyear, partially offset by elevated
average purchase prices for coffee beans.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by HK$5.4 million, or 2.2%,
from HK$240.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to HK$246.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The Group’s gross profit margin increased from 33.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to 34.1% for the year ended
31 December 2024.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group’s other income and gains, net increased by
HK$11.4 million from HK$5.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to HK$17.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2024. The increase was primarily due to the
resulting gain on disposal of HK$11.6 million from the sale of
assets classified as held for sale and items of property, plant
and equipment.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased by
HK$0.8 million, or 0.8%, from HK$102.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to HK$102.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024, primarily due to the decreases in (i)
marketing and promotion expenses and (i) logistics expenses,
which were generally in line with the decrease in revenue.
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NEBHUWA BB E2023F12A31B L EEH
728 9B BALRBALTSEEALIIINEHE
202412 A31B IEFE 72118 & A T ° B
DEETHRNARE BT E AR RERE
EmBARL  MkHEEZHRFBEALE P

FBHRENERZETERNEERD -

HE R A&

REBREEKANBB E£2028F12H31H IEF
[EM488.4B BE LB 1328 BA LH2.7%
ZH E2024F12A318 It FEWM475.28 BB
Lo HERARD DEZARFRZEHRME
R BE SRR AR D FT B - MR MBE S F R
FEEIZ M D -

EFREFE
AREBHERNHEZ2023F12831H IEFEH
240.6B BB LI MNS.4AB BB TTH22%EEHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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General and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by
HK$1.5 million, or 1.9%, from HK$79.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to HK$80.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The increase was primarily a result
of the general increment in staff costs.

Other Expenses, Net

The Group’s other expenses, net increased by HK$0.4 million,
or 9.3% from HK$4.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 to HK$4.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The increase was primarily a result of the losses on foreign
exchanges caused by depreciation of the Renminbi currency.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by HK$0.8 million, or
80.0%, from HK$1.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 to HK$1.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The increment was primarily the result of the increase in
interest on lease liabilities as renewal of tenancy agreements
and new leases were entered for business expansion.

Taxation

The Group’s taxation increased by HK$4.7 million, or 45.6%,
from HK$10.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
HK$15.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, mainly
due to withholding taxes were levied in respect of dividend
distributions arising from profit of foreign investment enterprise
in Mainland China and the increase in profit before tax. The
Group’s effective income tax rate therefore increased from
17.5% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 20.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Profit For The Year and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s profit for the year increased by HK$10.4 million,
or 21.4%, from HK$48.7 milion for the year ended 31
December 2023 to HK$59.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2024. The Group’s net profit margin increased from
6.7% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 8.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

—BRITHREAX

NEE K — M RITHF X A& E2023F12 A31
HIEFEMN79.38 BB T M8 EB T
1.9% £ # £2024F12A31H L FEMB0.8E 8
BT oM EEHRE TN AERBERMA
ﬁ(o

Httfx F8

RNEE R H b F BB AL £2023F 12318
IFFER4.38 BB TIEIN0.48 &8 7T39.3%
EH FE2024F12A31H It FEWATE B B
TLoBMNEEARAREEEESNELEE
FTER

il & B A
AEEMREK AR £2023F12H31H IEF
£ M1.08 8% L1 0.85 & % T (80.0% =
B E2024F12A31HIEFEMI8EEB T °
EMDEEHREERZBO R EBER
AV EERAEaER S8 -

#iE
ANEBHTHIERE E2023F 128318 IEFEH
10.3E BB TIE M4 7E BB L R45.6%EHE
2024F12AB1H IEFEMIS.0EE8 T £ B
HREBEINECEFTERFTE NS R F
EER R B 5 KA T8 0B K B BOAT i ) 15
M - AEENERASHEEAMBEE
2023F12H31H It F E W17.5%E ME#H E
2024F12 318 |[FFE #20.2% °

F R F R AR =2

NEE K F N F B A E£2023F12 A31H LEF
FEM48.7E B & T IN10.48 B 78 7T 521.4%
Z B E2024F12A318 I F E 5915 8 8
TL o AEEMALR KRB EE2023F12A31H 1E
F 8 B6.7%IE 11 £ # 22024512 A31H [EF
€ #98.2% °

SEomEsR BRERBERREERAT 13



| 2 BB
ﬁi@'g’i

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Capital Expenditure and Commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
additions of property, plant and equipment of HK$24.9 million
(2023: HK$30.8 million). A substantial portion of the Group’s
capital expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
in relation to (i) purchase of coffee and tea machines which
leased to the Group’s customers, (i) production
machineries and (i) enhancement of facilities.

were

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital commitments
of HK$5.0 million (2023: HK$3.9 million), mainly comprising the
amounts related to contracts of capital expenditure in the
coffee roasting and packaging system and the upgrading of the
ERP system.

Borrowings
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had total interest-bearing
bank borrowings of HK$4.0 million (2023: HK$7.1 million).

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$308.0 million, representing a decrease of HK$83.5 million
as compared with net current assets of HK$391.5 million as at
31 December 2023. The decrease in net current assets was
mainly attributable to the distribution of special dividend of
HK$100.0 million (2023: nil) during the year, which resulted in
reduction in cash and cash equivalents.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$170.4 million
as at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$253.8 million). The Board
is of the opinion that the financial position of the Group is
robust and the Group has sufficient resources to support its
operations and meet its foreseeable capital expenditures.

Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2024, the capital structure of the Group
comprised issued capital and reserves.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

The Group did not have any concrete plan for material
investments or capital assets for the forthcoming year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the vyear
ended 31 December 2024.

Contingent Liabilities
Saved as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements
below, there were no other contingent liabilities.

Litigation Matter

In April 2020, the Group filed a legal action against a third
party in Mainland China for infringement of trademark and
improper competition. In July 2022, the Group received a
favorable judgement from the People’s Court of Shanghai
Pudong New Area, Mainland China. Up to the date of this
Annual Report, the third party filed a petition for appeal against
the first instance judgement, and the appeal is still pending.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, on the basis of total interest-bearing
bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent, the Group’s gearing ratio was 0.8% (2023: 1.2%). The
decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to a decrease in the
outstanding balance of interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has transactional Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the unit’s functional currencies.
The majority of the Group’s foreign currency purchase
transactions are denominated in the United States dollars. On
the other hand, the Group’s sales are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The management is closely
monitoring foreign exchange exposures of the Group. The
Group will consider adopting a foreign currency hedging policy
for significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

currency exposures.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rate. The Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Credit Risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
limited.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables arises
from the default of the counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

assets

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. In
the management of liquidity risk, the Group has been
maintaining a cash pooling system where excess liquidity is
equalised internally through inter-group accounts. Depending
on the specific requirements of each funding agreement,
funding for the Group’s operating companies may be sourced
directly from the Group’s bankers or indirectly through the
Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wong Tat Tong (E#Z E), aged 71, has been a Director since
6 July 2000 and was redesignated as an executive Director on
4 September 2017. He is the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive
Officer”). He is primarily responsible for managing and
formulating overall strategic planning and development of the
Group. Mr. Wong has joined the Group for over 40 years since
May 1978. Mr. Wong is a director of several major operating
subsidiaries of the Group and also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Being responsible for the day-to-day management
and overall strategic planning and development of the Group,
Mr. Wong has been playing an important role in the Group’s
development and growth over the past 40 years.

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist College (presently known as the Hong Kong
Baptist University). He is the Permanent Honorary President of
the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the Permanent
Honorary President of The Hong Kong and Kowloon Provisions,
Wine & Spirit Dealers’ Association Limited, a member and an
honorary committee member of The Chinese General Chamber
of Commerce and the representative of Tsit Wing Coffee
Company, Limited’s membership in The Hong Kong Chinese
Importers’ and Exporters’ Association.

Fan Yee Man (Z#&#8), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director on 4 September 2017. Ms. Fan is the group
chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”). She joined the Group in 2012 and
is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
position and accounting matters, information system, and
operation control of the Group. Ms. Fan is a director of several
major operating subsidiaries of the Group. She is also the
company secretary of all of the Group’s subsidiaries which are
incorporated in Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EELEREEE (&)

Ms. Fan has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting management. Ms. Fan obtained a bachelor of
business administration (honours) in accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Fan is a member and a fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Certified Public Accountant certified by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Kam Chun Pong Bernard (£ #& #8), aged 68, was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 4 May 2021. He is
the Head of Group Strategic Planning & Business Development
with effect from 1 July 2023. He has been working for the
Group for more than ten years and is primarily responsible for
the Group’s business strategy and planning, coordinating and
overseeing all marketing affairs of the Group and the Group’s
B2C business. Mr. Kam has more than 30 years of experience
in marketing, sales management, and business development in
both the fast-moving consumer products and the food service
industries. Mr. Kam obtained a Higher Diploma in business
studies from Hong Kong Polytechnic (presently known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and a Diploma in Marketing from
the Institute of Marketing (United Kingdom). He also completed
a ten-week international general management program, namely
Program for Executive Development (P.E.D.) at the International
Institute for Management Development (IMD) in Switzerland. Mr.
Kam is a director of several major operating subsidiaries of the
Group.

18 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

BONBEMBE NG ERETEEB0FLR -
BNARBTEWTAEEREABETIHER
KRERL -HNARFHAAREHNMAEEE
BREGENREFTEEAM AR AEM
i o

Foy

half}
_'_

) A

€IRFP - 685% ' B2021F5 4B BEZ T A
TEFE - FH2023F7A1H BIEEEE R
EINEBRBREE -HEXNEAEBETF -
TEZEHEAEBENERRBRAE  HAKE
EXREEMAMSEBRAEEHB2CE -
CEETRREEMRRMBRBEITENTS -
HEBEREBEREFBOFLR -4t
EEREBRIZR(ABREEEIRB)ER
BB R R SUR K& BB ™% 2 2 (Institute of
Marketing) 98 3% M 75 SR © I INME TR T BB B
B % B 2 F(nternational Institute for
Management Development)5efik A H B %E &
T A B % R % #Z(Program for Executive
Development) W Bl [R4r 6 BEIEMRIZE - @K E R
AEBEZHEIELEENBARIMNES -



Eup E |

%
gi‘%ﬁm I

Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Timothy John Collins, aged 56, was appointed as a
non-executive Director with effect from 14 June 2023.
Mr. Collins has over 25 years of experience in the fast-moving
consumer goods and healthcare industries. He has been the
chief executive director of DCH Auriga Healthcare and
Integrated Market Services Asia — Southeast Asia region. He
has also been the head of DCH Logistics and DCH Foods in
Mainland China since November 2023. He joined Li and Fung
Asia (“LF Asia”) in 2004 and had been essential to LF Asia’s
development, leading the expansion of market coverage across
Asia and orchestrating the acquisition of LF Asia by Dah Chong
Hong Holdings Limited (“DCH Group”) in June 2016.
Post-acquisition he has overseen the integration of LF Asia and
the rebranding of the DCH Auriga healthcare platform
independent from the DCH Foods platform. Prior to joining the
DCH Group, Mr. Collins was the general manager (Hong Kong
and Taiwan) from 2000 to 2003, the sales and marketing
director (Indonesia) from 1998 to 2000, and took other various
roles from 1991 to 1997 at Cadbury Schweppes Ltd.
Mr. Collins is a member of the Hong Kong Supplier Association
and Global Standards 1 and a member of the Advisory Board
for the Asian Institute of Supply Chains & Logistics, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Collins completed
various courses including the leadership program of MIT Sloan
School of Management in July 2010.

Mr. Lee Tak Wah (ZfZ %) aged 60, was appointed as a
non-executive Director with effect from 14 June 2023. Mr. Li
has over 20 years of experience in corporate and business
management. He has been the executive director and head of
new retail, motor & yacht of DCH Group since January 2023,
where he is responsible for overseeing the motor and yacht
business operation and development. Mr. Lee has joined the
DCH Group since June 1999 and has held various senior
positions within the DCH Group. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor
of Engineering (Mechanical Engineering) from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1987, and received a
Master of Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 1996.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Tang Kwai Chang (& ¥), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Tang has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and audit risk management. Mr. Tang obtained a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist College
(presently known as Hong Kong Baptist University). He is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an honorary member of the Court of Hong Kong
Baptist University. Mr. Tang was conferred with the Honorary
University Fellowship by the Hong Kong Baptist University in
September 2017.

Mr. Tang is currently an independent non-executive director of
HKR Limited (stock code: 480), a company
engaging in property development and investment and FIT Hon
Teng Limited (stock code: 6088), a company engaging in the
development and production of interconnect solutions and
related products.

International

Wong Man Fai (E3X#8), aged 75, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong
has over 30 years of experience in the insurance industry. Mr.
Wong obtained his bachelor of science and master of business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of Starr International Insurance (Asia) Limited, a private
company engaging in insurance business, in October 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Lok Kung Chin Hardy (B #51E), aged 75, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2020.
He is a member of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Lok graduated in Civil Engineering from the
University of Manchester Institute of Science & Technology. He
is a member of both the Institution of Civil Engineers and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Mr. Lok is the
Chairman of The Sun Company, Limited and has over 50 years
of experience in building and engineering construction work.
Mr. Lok has been an independent non-executive director of
Kowloon Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 00034)
since January 2002.

Save as disclosed herein, there are no other matters
concerning the Directors that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders nor is there any other information
relating to the Directors that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Kwong Pui Lam Peter (BBSfi#k), aged 58, is the China
General Manager — OEM Business. He joined the Group in
December 2024. He is primarily responsible for the short-term
and long-range planning for PRC OEM business, and will be
responsible for the further development of the PRC OEM
business and ensuring smooth business operations. He has
over 30 vyears of experience in lean operations and its
technology development, from ideas, roadmap and strategic
planning to team buildup and solid deployment to turn the
vision into reality. Prior to joining the Group, he served as the
Global Operation Excellence Director of Lee Kum Kee (XinHui)
Food Co., Ltd. from July 2019 to August 2024. He worked at
GD Midea Kitchen Appliances Manufacturing Co. Ltd. from
November 2007 to May 2019, with his last position as
Operation Management Director. He received a Bachelor of
Engineering from the University of Brighton in 1993.

BESSIE - 755% * A2020F12 A10B EZ X A1
UHATES BAEBZLZEGRIEREZES
BB o FE S A 2 FUniversity of Manchester
Institute of Science & Technology £ A T 2
R BAEBEIAIEMEBE REBTLIZME
28 NUAEEEEMBEEREE - L
EREBRNBEBRRANERE  NEFRIRE
338 77 E R B IS0 48 B o B St A B 200241
AREENAEREEER QAR SG KR :
00034) KY B JEFNITESE ©

MBRAFERFEEIN BEEGENRESZEH
BAHBERERET TREEMERESHNER
ERE E TR B3 512K 5 -

I_%_l‘ FE#}EE

BHAk - 585% - I AP B KFERLE —OEMZE
o BR2024F12AMAAREE - HEEBHE
FREOEMEK M KRG HRE A EH
OEMEBH#E — B R RBEREKLEIRS -
BHEAENFHRmEERHERIAEEER
HES EE HBRIINEBKEE - EP
ENHEEET - RMAREEA - HHR2019F
TAE2024F8 A L EATHT (FE)RREAR
NAIMEIRE ML ERE - HR2007F11AE
0195 AR ERENTEFERLEBR
ANAEl EREBUAEEEEMBE - X193
FEMRBEBASBREFSIBEB LB

SEomEsR BRERBERREERAT 21



| H
| gﬁ.ﬁ Yy

Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Cheung Chi Hang Alan (R&1E), aged 51, is the group
operating officer — sales. He joined the Group in July 2021.
He is primarily responsible for formulating and overseeing
overall sales strategies and activities in B2B market in Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas. He has over 20 years of
experience in sales and marketing in food service. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked at Ecolab Limited from April 1999
to July 2021, with his last position as Field Director,
Institutional, Hong Kong and Mainland China. He received a
bachelor degree of science in chemical technology from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1995 and a professional
diploma in marketing management from the Hong Kong
Management Association in 1998.

Hau Ka Wai (1R &% £), aged 47, is the group operating officer
— human resources & administration. She joined the Group
from 2007 to 2017 and recently rejoined in 2020, and
oversees the human resources and administration department.
She is mainly responsible for corporate social responsibility and
overall human resources strategy planning. Ms. Hau has over
20 years of experience in human resources. Ms. Hau obtained
a Bachelor of Business from Holmes Institute.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Fan Yee Man (¥#&#8), aged 44, was appointed as the
Company Secretary effected on 4 May 2021. Save for her
duties as an executive Director as disclosed above, she is also
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board
and the Board committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, Shareholders and senior
management of the Company.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is firmly committed to a high level of corporate
governance and adherence to the governance principles and
practices emphasising transparency, independence,
accountability, responsibility and fairness. These principles and
practices are reviewed and revised regularly as appropriate to
reflect the ever changing regulatory requirements and corporate
governance development. The Board believes that the high
standards of corporate governance is the essential core for
sustaining the Group’s long term performance and value
creation for our Shareholders, the investing public and the
other stakeholders.

The Company also recognises the importance of integrity,
ethical conduct, and responsible business practices, which are
instilled and continually reinforced across the Group. The
Company’s culture and values of acting lawfully, ethically, and
responsibly are integral to its operations, long-term growth and
sustainability and is essential to its success.

The Board has established the Company’s purpose, values,
and strategy, and has satisfied itself that the Company’s
culture is aligned. By acting with integrity and leading by
example, the Directors will further and continue to promote the
desired culture within the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2024, complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code (to the extent such provisions are applicable), except for
code provision C.2.1 which states that the roles of chairman
and chief executives should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Related details are set out in
the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management power of the
Company to the executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. However, full delegation is not allowed for some
specific matters under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory requirements, and the
final decisions on those specific matters are required to be
taken by the whole board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to
creating value for our Shareholders. The Board is responsible
for developing the strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning is one of the
Board’s important functions for aligning mission and vision and
a lot of focus and attention have been devoted to such a plan.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3.  review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4., develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Board has performed above duties during the year ended
31 December 2024.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, our Board comprises
eight directors, including three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The current composition of our Board is as follows:

Membership of board

Name of Director committee(s)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Tat Tong
(Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer)

Ms. Fan Yee Man

Mr. Kam Chun Pong
Bernard

Chairman of Nomination Committee
Member of Remuneration
Committee

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Timothy John Collins
Mr. Lee Tak Wah

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration
Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Wong Man Fai

Mr. Lok Kung Chin
Hardy

The designation, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each
other, senior management of the Company or substantial or
controlling Shareholder are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this Annual Report. In addition, a list
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company at www.twcoffee.com.

The independent non-executive Directors represent three out of
eight of the Board which exceeds the Listing Rules requirement
for one-third. In compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, the Board has appointed an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition (Continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board, through the Nomination Committee, has assessed and
considered that all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company recognises that independence of the Board is a
key element of good corporate governance. The Company has
established effective mechanisms, including but not limited to
entitling the Directors and members of the Board committees
to seek independent professional advice on matters relating to
the Company where appropriate at the Company’s expense, to
ensure independent views and input are available to the Board.
These mechanisms in place are subject to annual review by the
Board that underpins a strong independent Board.

Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective delivery of the Board functions.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in May 2018 and it has been reviewed by
the Board on an annual basis. The Board Diversity Policy has
been published on the Company’s website.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, when reviewing the
composition of the Board and considering the nomination of
new Directors, the Nomination Committee will, by referring to
the business model of the Group and specific needs from time
to time, take into account a number of factors, including
gender, age, cultural and educational background or
professional experience, skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race and other qualities, etc.

The Board comprises one female member who is an executive
Director and also the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of the Company. Having considered the overall Board
composition and the business needs of the Group, it is of the
view that gender diversity has been achieved in respect of the
Board.

26 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

BEEg (&)

ExgmaaAK (&)
AAREWEZSBIIFERNITESRE LR
BIB3AMGHEE O o B R H 2 BFHER
EZ-FRERLET BEESCTHEIRAES
BB IERNTTEENEE2024F12A31H IEF
EHEBILMH -

ARPRAEZTENBILENBRIFERE
AHBREAR - ARBRZA MK - BIEE
TRREZLREFZEENRBEHERBERIRE
BRAARRZTESKEVEXER  BAM
HMARRBE HBUEREZSGAABEYER
RERER EF2SF@EGARAHRS £
EMABNNBYEESEAER-

EX(BRBUFATER)ORAREZME
BZHAER NEREXTH WEFSH
NBME RS ETHBEE -

BEExEefR ezt

BEF2HR2018F5ARMEETERE Z TILK
RERHIEEEKREZTIEHNE MU KE
NETIANEEREZ BESgC8Fm -
BEEKEZTIEBREFERARRQ A B

REEFEXNEZTEBER  RTEFSAK
REBRAMEER REZEGHITELZ2E
AEENEHERALRAETE  ZREZER
EBREMA MERHEEBREHFEELR
R - HMBRETELER B8 BERLHEME

EZgRRBRMRTES  WAEART
MBRENRARME -ZEIBREETSANX
RASENEBTE  ARARRAREEFESE
HE&KZER MR Z T -



39

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

&

BamE (&)

BOARD DIVERSITY (Continued)

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board by maintaining the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognising and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. Board appointments will continue to
be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The following chart shows the diversity profile of the
Board as at 31 December 2024:
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As at 31 December 2024, the ratio of male and female in the
workforce (including the executive Directors and senior
management) is 59% and 41%, respectively. The total gender
diversity of the Group is balanced, and the Group will continue
to maintain the gender diversity in the workforce.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wong Tat
Tong is currently the chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer, responsible for formulating the overall
business development strategy and planning of the Group. In
view of Mr. Wong having been responsible for the overall
management of the Group since 1978, the Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Wong taking
up both
development. The Board considers that the balance of power
and authority, accountability and independent decision-making
under the present arrangement will not be impaired because of
the diverse background and experience of the three
independent non-executive Directors. Further, the Audit
Committee has free and direct access to the Company’s
external auditor and independent professional advisers when it
considers necessary. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in such circumstance. Except for the deviation from
the said CG Code Provision C.2.1, the Group’s corporate
governance practices have complied with the CG Code (to the
extent such provisions are applicable) during the year ended 31
December 2024.

roles for effective management and business

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board met five times, four of which were held in-person
and the remaining one via electronic means, in the financial
year of 2024. Various matters such as overall business plans,
financial and operating performance of the Group, audit
planning, budget, the financial reports, ESG
developments and corporate governance related policies and
practices for the Group have been discussed, reviewed and
approved (where applicable) during the meetings. Notice of at
least 14 days was given to all Directors for regular Board
meetings in order to give them an opportunity to attend. For
other Board meetings, notice was given in a reasonable time in

annual

advance.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

All' Directors have full and timely access to all
information in relation to the Company. There are established
procedures for Directors to seek independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities,
where appropriate, at the Company’s expenses.

relevant

During the year, Directors have made active participation in the
Board meetings and Board committees meetings.

The minutes of the Board meetings and all other committee
meetings recorded the matters considered by the Board or the
committees (as the case may be) in sufficient details. All the
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
upon prior appointment for inspection by any Directors,
auditors or any relevant eligible parties who are entitled to have
access to such information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an
Audit Committee and a Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference.

Board of Directors
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

Membership of Remuneration

Name of Director Committee

Executive Director:

Mr. Wong Tat Tong
(Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer)

Member of Remuneration
Committee

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang Member of Remuneration
Committee

Chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Wong Man Fai

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including the advice of independent
professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible to consider
and approve the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management of the Group, including salaries, benefits in
kind and bonuses; bonus schemes and other long-term
incentive schemes, including share option and other plans with
reference to the relevant remuneration policy which takes into
account, amongst others, the salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its
subsidiaries and the respective corporate and individual
performance.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in-person in

the financial year of 2024. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 36 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year

of 2024

o Reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group, namely
KPI Policy, Performance Management Policy,
Review Policy and Annual Performance Policy;

° Reviewed the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31

December 2024;

° Reviewed the updated organization chart of the Group;

o Reviewed the remuneration package of the key

management of the Group; and

o Reviewed the bonus scheme of the Group.

The members of the Remuneration Committee have discussed
the above matters during the meetings and made

recommendations to the Board for approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee

Name of Director Membership of Audit Committee

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang Chairman of Audit Committee

Mr. Wong Man Fai Member of Audit Committee

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Member of Audit Committee
Hardy

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and their
audit fees; meeting with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit; reviewing the Company’s
financial statements and interim and annual reports before they
are submitted to the Board; discussing problems and
reservations arising from the interim review and final audit, and
any other matters the external auditor may wish to discuss, and
reviewing the external auditor’s management letter and
management’s response; considering any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and giving due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s external auditor and compliance
officer (if any); reviewing the internal audit programs and to
ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditor,
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; discussing the risk management and
internal control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company; and acting
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Board has delegated the risk management responsibilities
to the Audit Committee to oversee and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures that
have been in place.

The Audit Committee met three times, all in-person, in the
financial year of 2024. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 36 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the financial year
of 2024

° Reviewed the 2024 preliminary interim results
2024 interim financial report; 2023
preliminary annual results announcement and annual
statements with management and external

auditor, and recommended their adoption by the Board;

announcement;

financial

° Reviewed the reports from internal audit consultant their
work in relation to the Company’s internal control systems
and approved the 2024 internal audit plan;

° Reviewed the Dividend Policy, the Whistleblowing Policy
and the Anti-Corruption Policy and made
recommendations to the Board for consideration;

o Met with the external auditor to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

o Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

° Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-
audit services provided by the external auditor, together
with its respective fees;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the financial year

of 2024 (Continued)

° Reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function and compliance with the related CG Code;

° Reviewed the business budget for the financial year of
2025;

° Reviewed the policies of the Group over trade receivables
and discussed about the impact of the legal proceedings
in which the Group was involved on the financials and
operation of the Group; and

o Held private session with external auditor in the absence
of executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Nomination Committee

Membership of Nomination

Name of Director Committee

Executive Director:

Mr. Wong Tat Tong
(Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer)

Chairman of Nomination
Committee

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Man Fai Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Member of Nomination Committee
Hardy

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee also reviews the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender and age) of the Board; Director’'s time
commitment; policies in relation to nomination of Director and
Board diversity. The Committee would identify and determine
the measurable objectives for achieving board diversity and
monitor any progress made in achieving such measurable
objectives. The Committee would also recommend to the
Board on appointment or reappointment of and succession
planning for Director and Chief Executive Officer.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character, qualifications, experience, independence
and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity,
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

where

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in-person in the
financial year of 2024. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 36 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the financial year

of 2024

° Reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the mix of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and
experience of the Directors) of the Board;

° Reviewed the execution effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy and made recommendations to the Board for
approval;

° Assessed and confirmed the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors; and

o Reviewed and recommended the appointment and rotation
of Directors.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings, Audit Committee meetings,
Nomination Committee meetings and general meeting(s) during
the financial year of 2024 are as follows:

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

HE/ HEERLEGERY
Overall
Remuneration Audit Nomination General Attendance
Board Committee Committee Committee meeting Rate
Name ®E EEXg HMZzEE EHZEE REZEE BRRAE EBELER
Independent non-executive @~ BIFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang BEYEE 5/5 17 339 NATER 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong Man Fai IXELRE 5/5 1/1@ 3/3 11 11 100%
Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy BERERE 5/5 N/AT 3 F 3/3 11 11 100%
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Timothy John Collins Timothy John Collins 7t & 5/5 N/AT 3 F N/AZ i B N/AZ i 11 100%
Mr. Lee Tak Wah FEERE 5/5 N/A 8 N/AN 8 A N/ATN 8 A 11 100%
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Wong Tat Tong HEERA 5/50 1/1 3/30 1/16 1/1 100%
Ms. Fan Yee Man B s NE 5/50 1/10 3/30 1/10 11 100%
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bemard SRBEAE 5/5 N/A7 i A N/AT i N/AT i B 1/1 100%
Average Attendance of the EZEEREFHHER 100%
Board Members
Notes: B 3E -
(@)  Chairman of the Board (8 EFEEZEEF
(o)  Secretary of the Board/Committee b) E=g ZEEWE
(c)  Chairman of the Remuneration Committee © HFMZEEXR
(d)  Chairman of the Audit Committee d BEZZEEXR
()  Chairman of the Nomination Committee e) IRRBZEEER
()  Attendance by Invitation H  FEEEE
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
(Continued)

During the year under review, the chairman of the Board also
met with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other executive Directors and senior management
of the Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by Shareholders in a general meeting.
Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by Shareholders
are published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General
Meeting.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 14 June 2023. All non-executive Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance to the Bye-Laws.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s
Bye-laws, all the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term of not more than
three years under their letters of appointment. Pursuant to the
Company’s current Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and one-third (or the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s annual general meeting.

The letter of appointment of Mr. Tang Kwai Chang and Mr.
Wong Man Fai had been renewed for another term of three
years commencing from 11 May 2024 on the same terms of
conditions.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements and the Board
procedures,
Committees. Such Directors will be provided with relevant
guidelines including but not limited to “A Guide on Directors’
issued by the Companies Registry, “Guidelines for
Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Directors as
guidelines on the general principles of duties of directors,
Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors issued by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors (if applicable), Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission and Guidance for Boards and Directors
issued by the Stock Exchange.

including the terms of reference of the Board

Duties”

The Company Secretary
information about the enrollment of external training courses
and seminars as well as legal alerts and articles which are
relevant for Directors to keep up-to-date on any legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance requirements and with
professional practices in a dynamic business world. The
program would help refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in
relation to their performance of the roles, functions and duties
of directors of a listed company.

regularly provides to Directors

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to senior management of the
Company in this highly competitive consumer product market.
Members of the senior management are encouraged to
participate in various CPD programs at the expense of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2024, all Directors
participated in appropriate CPD activities by attending
training(s) and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The Directors have provided their training records for the
financial year 2024.

Reading regulatory
updates and

ESREREEEXRE(F)

RNEZE2024F12A31HIEFE  FTEEEE S
BamEIk, HBEBERARRAERXES
BEMEINER 2HBEMNEERIERRE
SEE o

EERCIRM20240 B F E eV IE L 8% -

Attending professional
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant
to directors’ duties,
regulatory updates

Reading materials and business

directors’ duties relating to business HEEREERL
MEEERTE and industry EEREEHR
EHENK MEBHEBR EBNEER
EERE TENESR ge mHe g8
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEBLAE v v
Ms. Fan Yee Man 45 g/ R v V
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard SIRA K E v V
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Timothy John Collins Timothy John Collins %t & v v
Mr. Lee Tak Wah FERELE y y
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang BEYiE v V
Mr. Wong Man Fai IXBEE v y
Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy BEASIE R4 v v
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS EEEMF

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 are prepared on a
going-concern basis. All the new accounting standards and
policies adopted by the Company have been thoroughly
discussed and approved at the Audit Committee before
adoption by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERRSE (F)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

The Group has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the
“Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required standards
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. The Code is also applicable
to the specified group of employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information. Specific enquiries were
made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024. Directors
have also disclosed to the Company their interests as director
and other office in other public companies and organisation in
a timely manner, and have regularly reported to the Company
Secretary on any subsequent changes.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to review the Board’s
effectiveness and to identify areas for improvements. The
chairman of the Board has also been evaluated on whether he
has adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled
his responsibilities as the chairman of the Board. Such
evaluation is usually conducted once a year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board
and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, Shareholders and senior
management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

& EERRE ()

COMPANY SECRETARY (Continued)

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to
the chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction
programme of Directors. All members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

Our executive Director, Ms. Fan Yee Man is the Company
Secretary of the Company. Please refer to “Directors and
Senior Management” section for her biographical information.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies

and procedures and organizational structures which aims to:

— ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;

— achieve effective and efficient corporate processes;

— safeguard the value of corporate assets;

— ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

— ensure the operations comply with all existing rules, policies
and regulations.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal audit system plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has
engaged an external consultant to perform reviews over the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems. The consultant also assesses
the risks inherent in particular business or functional areas,
including fraud or corruption, and conducts reviews or audits to
provide reasonable assurance that adequate governance and
controls are in place to address such risks.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERRSE (F)

INTERNAL AUDIT (Continued)

Internal audit consultant reports to the Audit Committee and
administratively to chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer. It was granted with the authority of unrestricted access
to all aspects of the Company’s activities and internal controls.
This helps the audit consultant to provide an
independent and objective assurance to the Audit Committee
on whether the control environments within the Company are
adequate.

internal

Internal audit consultant carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls in accordance with its annual
audit plan reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The
audit plan is prepared using a risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the Company structure,
organisational change, overall materiality of each business unit,
management’s concern, nature and complexity of operation
and operating environment. The risk assessment methodology
assists in identifying business risks and determining audit
frequencies. Internal audit consultant schedules its resources
focusing on high risk areas.

annual

The scope of work performed by internal audit consultant
includes review of entity wide controls, business process
control review, project based operational audit
compliance review and information technology system review. In
particular, business process
reporting controls and control testing would be performed on
assessing the operating effectiveness. Business process review
is performed on a continuous basis and aim to cover all major
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries on a cyclical
basis. Project based operation audit review focuses on specific
areas with high perceived risks and management concerns.
Internal audit consultant also conducts special review,
investigations, consulting and advisory services related to
corporate governance and controls as required by
management or the Audit Committee.

review,

review focuses on financial

Results of audit reviews are compiled in internal audit reports
and sent to senior management of the Company for process
improvement and rectification on a timely basis. Remediation
actions have been developed collaboratively by the
management and operational teams to rectify the control
weaknesses identified. All critical audit findings and control
weaknesses are summarised and presented to the Audit
Committee for their knowledge and/or attention.

42 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

W EBE S (4
NBBABERAEZZEEERLATTR
tREEFEIFERITREHRSE  HERTE
REMEREBAARREH R ANGEZEMRA
TENENNESD - BRXEAMANIETE
MRAEZZEERARANABEZRER
BRI RHBIEH ZRE -

NBEBAERREEERZESERNFE
BititE X EXBARKERETEIR
Ao B FEEM BN RARRGTX
WEEARBIZRE HEEY ZTXHEUD
ERSEN BEEEMNBISRE 2EMER
EREEIA MG LIRE - BTG T AB B Al
EGRBRMETES AR - NEETEMR
HREERETRIESERANEE -

N ETERN T FLEREEENERE
ZiRE R ABREERE  REABETHE
BERN AR REAMK RS RE
EBRERSLERTRM B REERE X5
AR ERMETERANR - X RERN S
FAEET  BNEBHMHRERNRE REH
BRRZMABETERK - RABETHNEER
A EtTREARESREEELASBIN
FEE - NEPEF R g E TR R
HE - EPEERBR R MBERRS - A
REEESERZBEGBRKWERE-

BRI NERERENAIFTRER AL
BEREARAREERAE  ARBHERRF
RAEHEIE - BIEE K & 8 B B K 7 I 5T ik
T8 WELE@EA 2B H - MEREE
ARERMEESHNBESREEREES
PARANE Ko BT



| ek
mﬁiﬁél

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE ABEGERE
The risk governance structure and the roles and responsibilities EREARBRSE AN ACEST T
of each layer are listed below: N
Board/Audit Committee ¢ Take the overall responsibility for risk management gzxg/ o RIERR Af@zﬁﬁ@ = ff
e Establish the structure for risk management ERZEg B REMREIRERE
o Approve operational risk policy and risk management %Tﬁté‘* $I_L Eﬁ( EMEBRERRERF
procedures
o Understand and review group most significant risks THEBEEEZREN ZER
* Determine strategic approach to risk and set risk appetite & 7F FE ¥ BB 2 SR S BN A KRR E R
BAXZEE
o Consider major incident findings and management EEXIZSEH2BENERE 2O
response &
Risk management & ¢ Develop and update the risk management policy [& B & 2 & BELREFHRREEBEREERRE
operation control and risk register EEEE 23
team (“RMOC”) e Co-ordinate the risk management and internal TARE 1op 38 [ B i B % ) B BE 4R VR B
control activities BREE
e Co-ordinate committees, contingency and o)) s MAZET EERERE
recovery plan
e Review major investigation findings on incidents E‘J‘%ﬂ ZEERAERR
e Compile risk information and prepare reports for ﬂkﬁﬂ&fﬁ%#ﬁ EERES
the Board/Audit Committee /\/%@23 B
Internal audit e Develop a risk-based internal audit programme A 2B & &t BB AR AKIE 2 NEETE &
e Audit the risk processes across the organisation B ?ﬂiﬁtiTZJ—L 2 e 12
e Receive and provide assurance on risk ERMRREHRERER ZREF
management
e Report on the efficiency and effectiveness of WMENIPEE 2 BE R BEE
internal control
Department heads e Build risk aware culture within the depts WEAEE EEFAEY BB E# Xt
e Agree risk management performance targets MERBREREEB T
e Ensure implementation of risk improvement WRATRERNREER
recommendations
e Identify and report changed circumstances/risks R R RERE SRR S
Individual employees
Spokespersons o Consider materiality of information disclosed to & A ERMAINAANTRBECENZEE
external parties [
e Delivery disclosed information to relevant MEESNEERERBEER
stakeholders
Individual employees ¢ Understand, accept and implement risk ERIET o TH EMRHTRERERIER
management process
e Report inefficient, unnecessary or unworkable WETEEE - TUEXTAIITZ
controls g2
e Report loss events and near miss incidents wEBBESEHRBREAEMH
e Co-operate with management on incident HERESIFETSHAS
investigations

=
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily

operations,

financial activities, compliance, strategy

development and business planning, investment decision and
external factors. The process are as follows:

Process Risk
Identification

Risk Analysis

Risk Evaluation

Risk Treatment

Identify the risks through department heads and
RMOC

Identify the risks that have a potential to
negatively affect the business strategic plan of
the Group

Consider the materiality of the impact of the risk
Access the relevancy to the business strategic
plan and the level of potential impact of the
delivery of the business strategic plan

Conduct a quantity measurement on its inherent
risk level, residual risk level and target risk level
Assess the risk severity according to its level of
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event
becoming actual event

Determine the severity with reference to the
historical data, reference from the industry and
own judgment

Identify the risks and assess the options available
to accept, mitigate or avoid the risks

Decide the appropriate response in terms of its
effectiveness

Establish the priorities in responding the risks

Selecting the risk treatment options

Preparing and implementing risk treatment plans
RMOC shall make a report to the senior
management for reporting the latest risk
landscape on a regular basis
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

° Risk Register
RMOC provides a risk register template for systematic
and consistent presentation of identified risks. For each
risk, there is a separate page which displays the details of
the risk, the risk severity presented in the format of risk
assessment matrix, the internal controls/mitigation
measures and the actions for improving the risk
mitigation.

° Control Self-Assessment (“CSA”)
The Group adopts the CSA process to provide
reasonable assurance that risks are properly managed
and business objectives can be met. It also promotes risk
awareness and the importance of up-keeping effective
internal controls.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS EFFECTIVENESS
Internal audit consultant has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies for
the financial year of 2024. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the findings and impartial opinion from the internal audit
consultant on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems, which are designed
to manage rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that
effective systems of risk management and internal control are
in place. With confirmation from the management, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate to the Group’s needs in its current
business environment and in terms of practicability for the year
ended 31 December 2024. No significant areas of concern that
might affect the financial, operational and compliance issues
and risk management functions of the Company were
identified. The scope of this review also covered the adequacy
qualification and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their training and budget.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company
is aware of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules
and SFO and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention unless it falls within
any of the Safe Harbours provisions under the SFO. The
Company has had a system in place with established policies
and procedures for complying with the inside information
disclosure requirements under the regulatory regime. Every
Directors have been provided with the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company has included in its code of
conduct and staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information.

REMUNERATION FOR SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the senior management by bands for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:

RFHE
ERRERERARTEEZEFMABDEE
TE ARAME - RELTRARES B
EHROIZERREARBEZRA - ARBER
BARBER EBRUEATERTIERQM
BEHER BIFEHRERBRESLHAEKRM
FEFMLZ2BGEXMREENSERNG - RE
TEEBRNTEHEARBERERTE AR
EE—ERBEREBRRMEFZAG -BRE
SEERRESKHESEHERZBSMMA
(AR BERERED) - ARBERITAT
AIRBTFMARTABREREEERELRE
RABIZEBERURABHER

B REEEH M

HE2024F12A31HIEFE ol ER BN
B E T

Number of individuals

AB
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 221,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7& %1,500,0005% 7 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7& %2,000,000% 7 2
EXTERNAL AUDITOR Sh BE 1% B Em

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company by Shareholders at the last annual general
meeting. An amount of HK$2.0 million was charged for the year
ended 31 December 2024 for statutory audits for the Company
and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services
provided by Ernst & Young for the Company and subsidiaries
during the year was HK$0.5 million, mainly comprised (i) interim
review of the condensed consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2024; and (ii) tax
compliance and advisory services.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR (Continued)

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
2024 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 67 to 74.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group has in place a Whistleblowing Policy which provides
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the
Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with
guidance and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the designated person.

In compliance with code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an Anti-Corruption Policy which promotes and
supports anti-corruption laws and regulations. It provides
guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption
and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist
fraud, to help the Company defend against corrupt practices
and to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud and
corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management or
through an appropriate reporting channel. The Company is
committed to the prevention, deterrence, detection and
investigation of all forms of bribery, corruption and related
malpractice among all employees and those acting in an
agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its
business dealing with third parties.

The Board and the Audit Committee will review the
Whistleblowing Policy and the Anti-Corruption Policy
periodically to ensure their effectiveness. For further details of
the Company’s Whistleblowing Policy and the Anti-Corruption
Policy, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may, by written requisition to the board or the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in the
requisition. The requisition must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Canon’s Count, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda (the “Registered Office”) for the
attention of the Company Secretary of the Company. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the
earliest opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should
also be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai Tak
Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Head Office”) for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The
requisition must be deposited at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Company Secretary. To ensure that the
requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should also be
deposited at the Head Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director at a general meeting is available for
viewing at the Company’s website at www.twcoffee.com.

Shareholders can also refer to the detailed requirements and
procedures as set forth
Companies Act and the Company’s Bye-laws when making any
requisitions or proposals for transaction at the general meetings
of the Company.

in the relevant sections of the

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2024.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our Shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that Shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the Company’s information and
reviewed the said Policy on a regular basis. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy is posted on the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (Continued)

Under the Shareholders’s Communication Policy, the annual
shareholders’ meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the
Company are the primary forums for communication by the
Company with
participation. The chairman of the Board in person chairs the
annual general meeting to ensure Shareholders’ views are
communicated to the Board. Moreover, the briefing on the
Company’s business and the questions and answers session at
the annual general meeting allow Shareholders to stay informed
of the Company’s strategies and goals. Shareholders may at
any time put enquiries to the Board. Any such questions shall
be directed to the Company Secretary.

its shareholders and for Shareholders’

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.twcoffee.com)
to keep Shareholders and the investing public posted of the
Company’s latest business developments, final and interim
financial reports, public
announcements, corporate governance policies and practices

results announcements,

and other relevant shareholder information.

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial
including the appointment and re-election of Directors will be
proposed by the chairman at the annual general meeting (the
“Chairman”) of the Company and will be voted on by poll. The
detailed procedures of conducting a poll will be explained by
the Chairman at the commencement of the annual general
meeting to ensure that Shareholders are familiar with such
procedures. The poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day
following the annual general meeting.

issue,

After the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
including steps taken at the annual general meeting and the
handling of queries received (if any) which were conducted
during the year ended 31 December 2024, the Shareholders’
Communication Policy was found to be effective and adequate.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company. The Company has established a principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai
Tak Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong and has been registered as a non-
Hong Kong company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently, the
Company, through its subsidiaries, primarily engages in (i)
processing and distribution of coffee, tea and related
complementary products; (i) distribution of frozen food; and (iii)
sale of coffee and tea machines and provision of coffee and
tea machine solutions.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Group during the
financial year is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and important events affecting the Group
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2024 are
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 9 to 16 of this Annual Report. The Group
has adopted a risk governance structure and established a set
of risk management processes which is embedded in our daily
operation and management. For details, please refer to section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 43 to 45.
Further, a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group can be found in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 8 of this Annual Report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EESg®E (A)

ISSUED CAPITAL
The movements in the issued capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, contributed surplus and retained profits. As at 31
December 2024, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$342.4 million. in the Company’s
during the year in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

Movements
is set out

reserves

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.16 cents per ordinary share (2023: HK2.22 cents) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2024.

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) to be held on Tuesday, 29 April 2025. Upon
approval to be obtained at the AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or before Thursday,
22 May 2025 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 7 May
2025.

Shareholders’

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 11 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EZg®E (A)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 24 April 2025 to Tuesday, 29 April 2025, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered, for the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entittement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate
transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 23 April 2025.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend, if
approved, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Wednesday, 7 May 2025, during which no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the
proposed final dividend, all transfers of Shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17th Floor, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 May 2025.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
period from 1 January 2024 and up to the date of this Annual
Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EESg®E (A)

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Ms. Fan Yee Man

Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Timothy John Collins
Mr. Lee Tak Wah

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

Mr. Wong Man Fai

Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is satisfied that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent as defined under the Listing Rules.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Wong Tat Tong, Ms. Fan Yee Man and Mr. Tang Kwai
Chang will retire from their offices as Director and subject to
re-election at the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 29 April 2025.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EZg®E (A)

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 17 to 22
of this Annual Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
There was no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing
Rules.

For changes in the remuneration of each of the executive
Directors, please refer to Note 8(c) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors proposed for re-election or appointment
at the AGM has entered into a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, while also
makes reference to the complexity of the Director’s work,
workload, responsibilities, as well as the Company’s
remuneration policies. Mr. Wong Tat Tong waived his
performance related bonuses entitlement from the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2024, and no such waiver for the
year ending 31 December 2025. Save as disclosed above,
none of the other Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration. Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest-paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 8
and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

EEREREEERE

ARREZRSREEBNEREFBHRNA
FHRFITERE(EELRSREEE] £ -

ESERNED
BE IR 6 E A BIE1351BIET U BE M E
FERE

ERASHITEESNTNES
B FE8(C) ©

EERBEY
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EEHM
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%EﬁIVE%ETEr_ THEERBEURARQTH
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EESg®E (A)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the directors and chief executives
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the Shares of the Company

(a)

Name of Executive Director Nature of Interest

BOTESBSSR EEME

Interest in controlled
corporation; Interest in a
section 317 concert party
agreement

REEERER

RESITER—BITBHAL
A0k £

Mr. Wong Tat Tong
(“Mr. Wong”) (Note 3)

BEEERAL ((EEE]D(HES)

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Ms. Fan Yee Man
B0

%%Fﬁ%ﬂﬁfﬁ&*ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%é&

MR2024F12A31H » ARAIZREEREETH
AEBRBEEHE ARARRE K& HE [ AE B
EE (ERRBH LG BRAIEXVED) ik H
HERGO REEEPHEERBEESRPE K
BIEXVEBET7 R85 BB A& AR 7] KBt XX FT Y
Bm oRE (BIEREEF K EBEEOIA R K
NEERTETHRABHEEXGERERD
BmRkRE)  IBRIBEES KRBT KO EXVE
EI2FEBEERR AR AIRIEZ G AR
EFcAanEz AR  IREIFESFRIZA
MERRARBERIMOERRABET

(@) RAEQXAROGHHEFR
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of as at
Shares held 31 December 2024
(Note 1) Total (Note 2)
7R2024%12H31H
FEROEE WERBABE I
(P 5E1) Fob (Mt 5E2)
514,667,312 514,667,312 71.41%
918,000 918,000 0.13%
184,000 184,000 0.03%

Beneficial owner
EmiEE A

Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard
&R HB 5L A4
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EZg®E (A)

Mg

Notes: M 5E

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company were long positions. None of the
Directors held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December
2024.

Based on the Company’s issued share capital of
720,731,612 shares as at 31 December 2024.

Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in 514,667,312
Shares: (i) by attribution of the interests of Hero Asia
Company Limited (“Hero Asia”) (a company controlled by
Mr. Wong holding 363,313,695 Shares); and (i) because
Hero Asia is a party to a side letter with Dah Chong Hong
Food International Holdings Limited (“DCH Food”) which
holds 151,353,617 Shares, to which section 317(1) of the
SFO applies, and accordingly Hero Asia has aggregated
its interests in the Shares with the interests of the other
party to the side letter. Therefore, Mr. Wong is treated as
being interested in 514,667,312 Shares via his controlled
corporation (i.e. Hero Asia).

Eai AR TR RAERGERSS AL
B o A2024F12A831H - EF M EN A
NAIRD REEROIFELRE -

AR D TR2024F 12 A31A W B 1T
K720,731,5120 B DT & -

TR B 514,667,3120% I 17 Fh 7
B (B®EFEB AR EGHero
Asia Company Limited ([ Hero Asia |)
(—HMBEktEEsnan B48
363,313,6950% % 1) &) B &1 ¢ K (i) B R
Hero Asia BH K 21T R mBEFIER AR
REI([AREBTER]DFITEFLBERK
BIEI7(N)IEEA 2 MM ET&A 7 -
KETTRMIFE151,353,617 KD « &
fbHero Asia B # H & 17 7 2 B2 FY o1 H b
IR TREREMHE Bt Ex Ak
WAR AE B ESZEXE (BlHero Asia)

R514,667,3120% B 17 A B 25 o

(b) Long position in the Shares of associated (b) REQATHEBELIERMGHER
corporations of the Company

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Nature of Name of associated ordinary as at

Name of Director interest corporation shares held 31 December 2024

2024F12H31H

EEnE EEME LB & B FrERB B NERBAB DL

Mr. Wong Beneficial owner Hero Asia 100 100%
mEAE EnEE A Hero Asia
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EESg®E (A)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
each of the persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Br E AT HEE SN - R2024F12A31H » AR
AESAFTETHRAEHMERARANEME
MABEZE(ERRBSH LBAE KR EXVE)
B ER AR 1 R AB R AR 15 P ¥ B IR 1B & 5 & B
BI&H E326 A AR MEGREECMAELR
HEERSOAR - MERBEESTR ST
EARRNAIRBZANERIORE

g%&i%&ﬁ&ﬁ%&ﬁ¢mﬂ
#2024 128318 « MIMA D AR EEH R
BEPIEORFENBEMAR  WTAL
(FRAEFREBTHRABRIRARAF
B REERG T EEREAADRAE R
B ARG % 5 A b 25 ROA R

Approximate %

Name of Shareholder

RRE®/

Hero Asia (Note 1)

Hero Asia (Fff551)
DCH Food (Note 2)

RETR®(F5E2)
CITIC Limited (Note 3)

REARERD
(B#5E3)
CITIC Group Corporation

(Note 4)
FEAREEEERRA
(Bt 5E4)

YN

Nature of Interest

EEtE

Beneficial owner; Interest in a section 317 concert party
agreement

EEBAAN  RENTHE-BTPALHETNER

Beneficial owner; Interest in a section 317 concert party
agreement

EEBAAN  RENTHE-BTPALHETNER

Interest in controlled corporation; Interest in a section 317
concert party agreement

REEERES  RENTE-BOTDALHEDOER

Interest in controlled corporation; Interest in a section 317
concert party agreement
REEERES  RENTE-BOTDALHEDOER
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Number of of total
ordinary shares issued share
(long position) (Note 5)
HERTRG

EEREE BYBHNEDI
(&) (B 7E5)
514,667,312 71.41%
514,667,312 71.41%
514,667,312 71.41%
514,667,312 71.41%
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Notes:

1. Hero Asia is deemed to be interested in 514,667,312 Shares: (i)
by including 363,313,695 Shares it holds as a beneficial owner;
and (i) because Hero Asia is a party to a side letter, to which
section 317(1) of the SFO applies, and accordingly Hero Asia
has aggregated its interests in the shares with the interests of
the other party to the side letter (i.e. DCH Food).

2. DCH Food is deemed to be interested in 514,667,312 Shares: (i)
by including 151,353,617 Shares it holds as a beneficial owner;
and (i) because DCH Food is a party to a side letter, to which
section 317(1) of the SFO applies, and accordingly DCH Food
has aggregated its interests in the shares with the interests of
the other party to the side letter (i.e. Hero Asia).

3. DCH Food is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of CITIC
Limited, and therefore CITIC Limited is deemed to have an
interest in the shares in which DCH Food is interested.

4. CITIC Limited is an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of
CITIC Group Corporation, and therefore CITIC Group
Corporation is deemed to have an interest in the shares in which
CITIC Limited is interested.

5. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 720,731,512
shares as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no
person, other than the Directors of the Company, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at the date of this Annual Report, the remaining life of the
Share Options Schemes is around 2 years and 9 months.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 72,397,931 Shares, representing 10% of the
issued Shares (excluding treasury Shares) as at the date of this
Annual Report.

B 35

1. Hero Asiatf 18 A 7514,667,3128 &) R 5
B (PEEFEREZHEEBEAFTAN
363,313,695% %1 + K (i) M Hero Asia & 75
HEREEEMEI7TIEFTER Z M T4
7 b Hero AsiaB i E A% D 1 a5 L s H
METH R (BAKETRMB)MWEZAHTHE -

2. KBITERBWE ANS14,667,3120% A% 15 F
EREZ: (PREFAEREEARFAED
151,353,617/ & 10 : Ry RAKXKETR M A
FHHEREEGEOIEIT)IETES 2 M EEE]
BH - BERXKETRME G ER G EMH
K H fth 5T 49 77 (BlHero Asia) B9 1 25 & H 51
:éo

8. ABAARRAREHERNERAFNHME
2EMBLRA BtPBEFAERHBERR A
WRARABTRRTABSNBATES
sk o

4. HERERODAERIARTETEEEER
REWEEIEZEMBE AR At B E
SEERAFAERASNFEBERNHERA
ATEARENEROD P HREERES -

5. AR A R2024F12A31E M E FEITRA
720,731,512 IR = & o

Br E AT EE SN - FA2024F12A31H » B &
AT (HEEZEREXESZHERS REBARK
MER KR —EBHEHINNEARRESRIN R
KRR IEEROCEERBEESFRLRE
&P 336K BT EETLERIAR -

BRESE
BEARFRBH  BREET SR T FHO2
FTOEA -

BREASTAHRZTORDAERR

72,397, 9310&f% 0 - HE R AFRBAHBE 17
& (e EEFRS)/10% °
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EESg®E (A)

=4

No options have been granted or agreed to be granted or
outstanding under the Share Option Schemes (as the case may
be). Therefore, no options were exercised, cancelled, or lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The total number of Shares that may be issued in respect of
options granted under the Share Option Schemes during the
year ended 31 December 2024 divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue for the year was nil.

Further details of the Company’s Share Option Schemes are
disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, the Company maintained a
sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e., at least 25% of
the issued Shares in the public hands) as required under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director or his/her respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there was no contract
of significance (i) in relation to the Group’s business; or (i) for
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

60 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

EREREAE RIBERME) T - HEREBER
BHgRBR B ERITE - Bt #E2024
FI12A3ALEFE  SEBREEET  BUH
R o

HE2024F12A31H IEFE - RIBIREREST
2% R B RRAE T AT P 21T A IR (D 42 BBk A
FREHTRONMEFTFHH AT -

ARBBEREFTENEZFBER B BKHRRM
H2TARKEE -

RALXRBRE
READNAMEBRNDAERARRESHR
M AR ER AR B HRE LR AR
EREETRNVEHRANREFRE (NE
LEUEBHTHMERBALHA) -

EERXRE RSN ER

BMERRRRETAMERR R AT MA
RAEFHHEABEZBHEAERR LHAR
ADREFHEAEA D AR FRIFAEM
REFENEARS THHELH -

BRAFHABEREIN  AARIIEFEAHER
AL E N A Z2024F 1231 B IFFE EA R F]
TR AR R Sk 1R 5 % B MM B A BT ()
AEEEBKER KM ARRKEERNE
NAREBRBEHEREGLD -

EERBFRBPHES

FRCBREERRAR/AHANBAAES
S EFAESEENTERBACEER L
7 47 ) B8 40 0 B S B T T AE B AT
FEBF(EREERME) MEETEAE
25 -



| ER
| i@ % |

|3t

Directors’ Report (continued)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a Director
or any person engaged in the full-time employment of the
Company, concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2024.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed 198 and 176
(2023: 195 and 203) employees in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, respectively.

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to qualifications, experience, performance and market terms.
The Company has also adopted share option schemes to
motivate valued employees, details of which are set forth under
the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in the Prospectus
and Note 27 to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group provided
various trainings to its employees ranging from operation skills
such as occupational safety training and machine control
training to professional knowledge including management
systems and business knowledge, to ensure the effective
implementation of the Group’s business strategy.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in Note
31 to the financial statements, the Company confirms that it
has reviewed the transactions which complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules and the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (if applicable).

EEEHY

REE2024F12A31H IEFE » BELT Y s 1F
EEBARARE2PRTIRMERBOEBLNE
BRIOTBEHNEH(BESH AR TH2EBIE
BRI ML RIE A LIBRIN) o

ABEIR

202412 H31H » REB S RIRNEE K E
A FA198% & 1767 (20234 : 1954 K203
Z)REE °

FMAABESEZERE K RARTSHKE
KB E - RARMERMBAAE T BIAES B
EET ABASFRIARNBRERBRE
At &l = R B S R M eE27 e

RELE2024F12A31HIEFE - AEEMRERE
REZEFI - AAREBEL2EII LK
S HIE IS RERE REBRAREEM
BEEXNE BRAEVEEAEENEBR

B B8 om0 3
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o

FEBHIXEREGEERERS

MNEZE2024F12A31H IEFE - ARARNRBE S
¥BBRPIVHNEANPB AT EBTER
B 7 3R R BT 5E31 ©
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SEomEsR BRERBERREERAT 61



| ER
| i@ % |

|3t

Directors’ Report (continued)

EESg®E (A)

In particular, the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors), have reviewed and confirmed that the
transactions referred to in items “Purchase of goods via a
distributor”, “Logistics and storage costs charged by a
warehouse and logistics service provider” and “Original
equipment manufacturing processing income from a coffee and
tea manufacturer” of Note 31 (a) to the financial statements are
continuing connected transactions exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions
as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, other than the non-compliance
matter disclosed on Note 29 to the financial statements, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 and during the year, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to building a sustainable future and
maintaining the long term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. It assesses the materiality of
various ESG issues and take measures to control the
environmental and social impacts during operations. Acting in
an environmentally responsible manner, all businesses of the
Group are required to comply with all applicable ESG laws and
regulations strictly.
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The Group strives to minimise its environmental impacts
through effective air emissions control, superior water and
energy efficiency, proper waste management and resources
conservation. The Group also puts effort into creating positive
social impacts by protecting labour right and maintaining
integrity. More discussion on the Group’s ESG initiatives,
performance and applicable ESG laws and regulations can be
found in the standalone “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important and valuable
assets and thus it provides competitive and attractive
remuneration packages to retain the employees. The
management reviews annually the remuneration to its
employees of the Group.

The Group values long standing relationships with its suppliers
and customers. The Group aims at delivering high quality
services to its customers and developing mutual trust and
enhancing communication and commitment between the Group
and its suppliers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the percentages of
purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 14.2% and 55.1%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 25.7% and
39.8%, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors or any of their close associates, or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty except they shall
incur or sustain through their own wilful neglect or default,
fraud and dishonesty respectively. In addition, during the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Company arranged appropriate
liability insurance coverage in respect of any legal action
against the Directors. The insurance coverage shall be
reviewed on an annual basis.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to
enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate at any time during the year or at the end
of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes of the Company as
disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the relevant laws of the Bermuda where the Company is
incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its ultimate goal. It is the policy of the
Company to allow the Shareholders to participate in its profits
and to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Board
continues to adopt a dividend policy on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee. In deciding whether to recommend the
payment of dividend to the Shareholders, the Board will take
into account various factors, including (i) general business
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; (i) financial condition and results of
operations of the Group; and (iii) expected capital requirements
and future expansion plans of the Group. The payment of
dividend is subject to applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s constitutional documents. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. It is the
intention of the Company to distribute dividends in amounts of
not less than 35% of its net profit for a financial year by way of
cash or by other means.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under review.

DONATIONS

During the vyear, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately HK$141,000 (2023:
HK$190,000).

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 191 to 193 of this Annual
Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no subsequent event between the end of the
reporting period (i.e. 31 December 2024) and the date of this
Annual Report that would cause material impact on the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHRE (H)

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM. Ernst & Young, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 6 March 2025
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Independent Auditor's Report
B M % B ED

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Tsit Wing International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsit
Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 189, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYZEMEKS (F)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

our
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEHMES (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FAEHESER(F)

Key audit matter

BREESFEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNMNEEEARETEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 /&YW 5 E B E A1

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$106,206,000 before
deducting the loss allowance for impairment of
approximately HK$5,499,000. Significant management
judgements, estimations and assumptions were
required in determining the loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the trade receivables, with
reference to the groupings of various customer
segments, ageing profile of the trade receivables,
historical credit loss experience, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

M2024F12H31H - EEEEHRERKARIBBLTRL
106,206,000/ 7T (1 5 {8 &5 18 8 5 495,499,000 7T
Al - EEE SR KRIENBREEEERE (78
EEERDRAFELHEREEAE At REBER &
BEZEFPOHOE BIZRUWFERK ELEE
BB - TR T R AR A E AR L FEOA ©

We focused on this matter due to the magnitude of
the balance and the significant judgements and
estimates required in assessing the ECLs on trade
receivables.

BHEATLREETERERERRTGEE HEEK
ENEREEBEFTZEARHAE LMo

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and
15 to the consolidated financial statements.
R R BEE NGRS SRR M 3% 15 ©

We evaluated management’s impairment assessment
of trade receivables and our key procedures included,
amongst others, (i) obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the Group’s policy and approach to
determine the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables, including an evaluation of management’s
relevant judgements and estimates based on available
historical credit loss information, current conditions
and forward-looking information; and (ii) examining, on
a sampling basis, management’s calculations and
assumptions used to determine the ECLs on trade
receivables through testing of certain underlying
information generated by the Group’s financial
reporting system and assessing relevant past events
and current conditions of certain trade debtors as well
as applicable forward-looking information with
reference to related publicly available information.
BAEEEEHE SR SHENMEN G MEE
BFEEPBRE)O)THENL SEEEETESRE
WHRIEREBEEENRERT L BREREAISE
SEEEEER RARAMEEERTEEEENE
BB At RV EEEEEAREETE SR
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EBEBARBRARNEGLRRAULRKL2ZRER
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% B R E ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYUZEHMES (F)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

V% B R E ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

influence the economic

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

7

V% B R E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or,
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

if such disclosures are

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYZEMEKS (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

in our

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

6 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
GEBERXK

Year ended 31 December 2024

H E2024F12A31HILFE
2024 2023
2024 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F#& T FET
REVENUE A 5 721,117 728,930
Cost of sales 55 & B AR (475,157) (488,377)
Gross profit EF 245,960 240,553
Other income and gains, net E g A K W5 F 5 5 17,323 5,937
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (101,962) (102,829)
General and administrative expenses — #& & 77 B 52 (80,784) (79,328)
Other expenses, net Hap S F58 (4,717) (4,295)
Finance costs ELE= DN 6 (1,779) (1,040)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt A A 7 74,041 58,998
Taxation I8 10 (14,950) (10,287)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 59,091 48,711
Profit for the year attributable to NEEBEAEBLHFER
owners of the parent s A 59,091 48,711
HK cents HK cents
&1l AL
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAAEEERZREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted AR K #E 8.20 6.76
TR F BEBEBRIZERERAR 75
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEETEWER

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F12A1H L FE
2024
20244
HK$’000
FER
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 59,091
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hib2HEEE
Other comprehensive loss that may be BEERHEAJEET D BEER
reclassified to profit or loss in /) H fib 2 [ E5 38 -
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of B EFINEBKNER =&
foreign operations (4,008)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRAHEM2EER
FOR THE YEAR (4,008)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAEHEKEHAE
FOR THE YEAR 55,083
Attributable to: AT AT L
Owners of the parent NEHE A 55,083
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20234
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48,711
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REeEMBMRR K
31 December 2024
2024412 A31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

ERBEE

WREVE BEL
REBEEXN2EE

BABR - e REAMEK
IR

EERIAEE

FRBEERE

RBEE

FE

B 5 WA

TEERITA

BRHIE - e REMEK
IR

AJ 4 @ £ IR

ReMREEHEY

DRRBELENEE

g
&

PHEEHLE

Vi

.

G

RBEE

B 5 AR

J& 5T SRR Ko Ll & < 3R
TEEMTA
SFRRTTHE R

HERE

FE& 1 32 I8

UEIR:

S

/

EECEE

RBEEFME

Notes

Y

A

16
24

14
15
21

16

17

18

19
20
21
22
23

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
195,268 187,804
28,215 25,531
1,773 1,519
2,201 2,800
227,457 217,654
164,260 131,502
100,707 115,169
96 -
17,205 12,136
- 151
170,446 253,752
452,714 512,710
- 4,753
452,714 517,463
77,250 63,360
50,091 44,132
- 161
4,013 7,130
11,869 7,433
1,483 3,710
144,706 125,926
308,008 391,537
REBBERAR QT 77
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e IR R (&)

31 December 2024

2024512 A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TERT FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #AEERABEAERE
LIABILITIES 535,465 609,191
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEERE 23 17,345 10,524
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEEE 24 8,459 8,231
Total non-current liabilities R aEEsE 25,804 18,755
Net assets BEFHE 509,661 590,436
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BARBEAEAEMER
of the parent
Issued capital BT AR 25 72,073 72,073
Reserves B 26 437,588 518,363
Total equity TR 4B EA 509,661 590,436
Wong Tat Tong Fan Yee Man
Director Director
Ea BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEERSBX

Year ended 31 December 2024

HZE2024F12A3ALFE
Note
i
At 31 December 2023 and #R2023F12A31H
at 1 January 2024 e 1A2024%1 818 72,073 215,402 123,578 16,065 (16,664) 179,982 590,436
Profit for the year FRHH = = = - - 59,091 59,091
Other comprehensive loss FREMEEES :
for the year:
Exchange differences on REBINEBE
translation of foreign EHEE
operations = = = = (4,008) = (4,008)
Total comprehensive income FR2ERELEE
for the year = = = = (4,008) 59,091 55,083
Dividends i 8 11 = = = = = (135,858) (135,858)
Transfer from retained profits SR AR = - - 176 - (176) -
At 31 December 2024 72024412 A31H 72,073 215,402* 123,578 16,241* (20,672  103,039* 500,661
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREBERERCAVBEMRNENEGEEREE
HK$437,588,000 (2023: HK$518,363,000) in the consolidated 437,588,000/ 7T (20234 : 518,363,000/ 7T) °

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

GEERSBX(A)

Year ended 31 December 2024

H E2024F 12 A31HIEFE

At 1 January 2023

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss
for the year:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividends
Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2023
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20231718

F R A

FREMREEE:

BERINELH
ERER

FREZERERE

@)

EREREEN

120235124318

Issued

capital

B#1T

FR A

Note HK$'000
i FHET

72,073

Attributable to owners of the parent

NEEE AR
Statutory Exchange
Contributed reserve fluctuation Retained
surplus funds reserve profits
ETE B K )% 8
BB NES & REEM

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET
(note 26(a))  (note 26(b))  (note 26(c))
(Fftsk26(a))  (MizE26(b))  (KiEE26(c))

123,578 15,387 (12,198) 160,994
- - - 48,711
- - (4,466) -
- - (4,466) 48,711
- - - (29,045)
- 678 - (678)

123,578" 16,065" (16,664  179,982*

Total
equity

HK$'000
THET

575,236

48,711

(4,466)

44,245

(29,045)

590,436
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A1B LFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Finance costs

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of other items of

property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of trade receivables
Reversal of impairment of

trade receivables
Write-off of trade receivables
(Gain)/loss on disposal of assets

classified as held for sale and

items of property, plant and
equipment, net

Losses on changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments,

net

Write-down of inventories to net

realisable value
Write-off of inventories
Write-off of deposits paid for

purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade
payables
Increase in accruals and other
payables

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating
activities

Notes
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BAFIE - 2E MEMER
RIE (S8 ) R
B 5 RN RIEE M, O D)

FE& T R IA M E 5 5ROR

12 0

REemBRe
& B FEH
BB INRIA

REEPNRERE

N

A

A

~N O O

~N N~

2024
20244
HK$’000
FHBxT

74,041
(5,240)
1,779
12,530
25,351
803

(814)
1,056

(11,624)

756
764
320

404
100,126
(35,392)
12,787
(4,982)
14,611
6,101
93,251

(9,210)
(6,909)

77,132

2023
20234
HK$’000
FHET

58,998
(5,292)
1,040
12,800
26,401
1,844

(437)
363

699

185

619
436

97,746
61,770
(7,831)
5,866
(13,893)
2,242
145,900

(2,067)
(484)

143,349

RABEEBEZERERAR 81
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

GERETREXR(A)

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A1H L FE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment

Deposits paid for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of derivative financial

instruments

Proceeds from disposal of assets
classified as held for sale and
items of property, plant and

equipment
Interest income received

Net cash flows used in investing

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid
New bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Principal portion of lease payments
Interest portion of lease payments

Net cash flows used in financing

activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE

IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the

beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when

acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of

cash flows

REZBDRERE

BEME  BERARES
XBEME - BERRE

15 B &%

HED BRI ELERN

BENRME - V%&“

{68 A 8B
B Y 8 M A
BETHHARSRE

A

MEZHRERE

B &S 8P A
/? %E

ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
W) BB

ENRLRALEBEY
HNEFE R BB B LT

SE
?&
il

=

FRAERBASEEY

ReRkReSBEUER
7
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B £

17
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2024
20244

HK$’000

FTERT

(14,571)
(13,519)
(1,012)

17,222
4,761

(7,119)

(135,858)
16,813
(19,930)
(257)
(11,579)
(1,522)

(152,333)

(82,320)

253,752
(986)

170,446

105,917

64,529

170,446

2023
20234
HK$’000
FHET

(22,924)
(14,860)
(331)

1,013
5,062

(32,040)

(46,014)

65,295
189,789
(1,332)

263,752

168,324

85,428

263,752
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %% R R MY &

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at Flats F=J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai Tak
Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were engaged in the
following principal activities:

° processing and distribution of coffee, tea and related
complementary products

° distribution of frozen food

° sale of coffee and tea machines and provision of
coffee and tea machine solutions

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Hero Asia Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

ARAREEEHR

REBEBRZERAER 2R RAD
REBREEZMAK I AR QA
N B H) FE 8% =5 R A2 A Canon’s Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda ° AN 2 B #) F E & i B 70
BN A ZBEEBE15-3REEIES
D EBIEIEFJE -

RRFRREER AT - RNQF R B
NRARFRNE NI ERET

e MIEDEHME  XRRBEAEEE

0
a|
e ZDHBRRM

o B E UNTRHE Ro 2R DA Ko B 4 U R
R 2 R B IR 75

EEZRA ARAEEERATRZR
| A & AHero Asia Company
Limited - 7 — A 1 32 8 B & B & 5 1 AX
BV /NI

SmEE EEEEERERAT 83
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

1.

84

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

L

Dongguan Tsit Wing Food
Co Ltd.*

Shanghai Tsit Wing Food
Co Ltd.*

LERRRMERDA!

Tsit Wing Beverage Machine
Company Limited
ERERRBERARLA

Tsit Wing Coffee Company,
Limited

REMEARLA

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

principal place of

operation
and business

gAMYL/ BER

ITREER
XM

The People’s
Republic of
China (“PRC")/
Mainland
China

RE AR EME
(M@l
B A

PRC/Mainland
China

R/ B A o

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BROEE/
it iR A

HK$78,880,000

78,880,0007% 7T

US$2,400,000

2,400,000% T

HK$2
2B T

HK$10,000

10,000/ 7T

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

1.

M~ B &R

RAREEESH (EF)

ARAREEWMBRABFBWT

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Company

AR EEMN
BExEot
Direct Indirect
HE &
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Principal activities

FEED

Processing of coffee beans and
distribution of coffee, tea,
and related complementary
products

T MBS R M - K K&
HEEEEm

Trading of coffee, tea and
related complementary
products; sale of coffee and
tea machines and provision
of coffee and tea machine
solutions; and sale of
frozen food

EEWMY XRBBEEE
o SHE MU R
IR IR R A R R
RNRHEESRRM

Inactive
mEK

Processing of coffee beans;
distribution of coffee, tea
and related complementary
products; and sale of
coffee and tea machines
and provision of coffee and
tea machine solutions

MIMBEE - S KR
HEREER  HEMYE
RAH  WIREMGEE R
REBATR URHEE
SREM
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and Issued
principal place of ordinary/
operation registered
Name and business share capital
EMEL/ BERER
TERER BRTEE/
£ REEME ot it R A
Tsit Wing Cold Chain Solutions  Hong Kong HK$100
Company Limited
BRARRMEBERAA Bk 1007 7T
Tsit Wing (China) Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2
Company Limited
BR(PE)GEERAA 0 28T
Tsit Wing (China) Holdings Hong Kong HK$1
Limited
RR(PE)ZERERARA 0 18T
Tsit Wing (China) Industrial Hong Kong HK$22,264,780
Company Limited
ER(PE)EXERAA BE 22,264,780 7T
Tsit Wing (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,143,000
Limited
BREB(EB)ERALA BE 5,143,000 7T
Tsit Wing International Company  British Virgin US$10,276
Limited Islands
RERTES 10,276% 1T
# These companies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group, or are significant investment
holding subsidiaries of the Company. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

1. RAREEEH (&)

MELRER (E)

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

ANFERL
BBl TEED
Direct  Indirect
E# &
- 100 Processing and distribution of
frozen food
MIRDHEZRR m
- 100 Investment holding
REZK
100 — Investment holding
REZK
- 100 Investment holding
REZK
- 100 Investment holding
REZK
100 — Investment holding

BEZR

¢ ZERBRREFBEAEEMASINEE
Bk

ERINTEEZRRIBFEINAFREA
SESAEBEEFEEZRLINAR
BB AR XAR/RARAZEBRRER
BMBAR - EFR5 - Wi EMKE
NAER BSHAEBHBENR TR -

TEONEER ERERZERER QA 85
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

86

21

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
(“HKICPA”)
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Accountants and the disclosure

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
derivative financial
measured at fair value. Assets classified as held for
sale are stated at the
amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are
(HK$’'000) except when otherwise indicated.

instruments which have been

lower of their carrying

rounded to the nearest thousand

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company
has less than a majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

2. EFBEE)

2.1

mEEE(E)

B EE (F)

—REBEAT Bk E NEH
BREREKIESE - HARAEA
DPRBEHRKZ R ZNIALE
MR AIRAERERFEERS
BREHREHRNENREEE —
DHEBEERER B

(@) HEERBHRHEMREFAEAN

ERES

b) HEMEHORBMELNER
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SHERE -WEBARNEECH
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WRKHEESHEEZFTENELILL
2R/
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

88

21

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
as an equity

of control, is accounted for

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,

derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
interest and the
exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair
value of any investment retained and any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
in other

liabilities, any non-controlling

of components previously recognised

comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures
The Group has adopted the following

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)
Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)
Supplier Finance
Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs
are described below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the
requirements that a seller-lessee uses in
measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. Since the Group has no sale and
leaseback transactions with variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate occurring from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

(b)  The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-
current, including what is meant by a right to
defer settlement and that a right to defer must
exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement. The amendments also clarify
that a liability can be settled in its own equity
instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself
accounted for as an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its
classification. The 2022 Amendments further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before
the reporting date affect the classification of
that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period.

2. BIHBEMAE)
BHREEBREE (H)

2.2

KETEBUBREENNMEE K
FEHMMT
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k
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H-ARAKEBEEBUBR
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BEOERMBAIERB AR
EREEEFEENEE
LA K2 RE 38 ) HE | 4 B A RS A
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024

2024512 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

90

(b)

(Continued)

The Group has reassessed the terms and
conditions of its liabilities as at 1 January 2023
and 2024 and concluded that the classification
of its
remained unchanged upon initial application of
the amendments. Accordingly, the
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

liabilities as current or non-current

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify
the characteristics of supplier
arrangements and require additional disclosure
of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in
understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash
flows and exposure to liquidity risk. As the
Group does not have supplier finance
arrangements, the amendments did not have
any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

finance

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEREE)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 23 CHEBEMRERZEEBM KR
Financial Reporting Standards HEH
The Group has not applied the following new and AEBETEAMFHBHRERPER
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not ATEBMERER G REE
yet effective, in these financial statements. The AEBYBEREER  REBRBRY
Group intends to apply these new and revised ZETI RSB BN BREE
HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective. BI(ansE ) =7 T LARKA -

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

BT RREER
F185%

BAMBREER
E19%

AHHZHZ IR

#a
HOAHR NS
AR HEP

Amendments to  Amendments to the Classification ERMBREED HLHITANITBER
HKFRS 9 and and Measurement of Financial FORRBERE  HEHET
HKFRS 7 Instruments? & ERETH

CHEN

Amendments to  Contracts Referencing Nature- BENBREERN JSREBESERY
HKFRS 9 and dependent Electricity? EORRBERE  EIHELP
HKFRS 7 WEERETHR

CHEN

Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of Assets ERAMBREERD REZHABELF
HKFRS 10 and  between an Investor and its F10RREE HEEFEZEL
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture* 25T ER| F285 EEHELRA

CHEN)

Amendments to  Lack of Exchangeability’ BEGHER hZ A AN
HKAS 21 F215% (BFTR)

Annual Amendments to HKFRS 1, BEHBHEER BEFBREER
Improvements HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS BiTEAIMER E1R - BAUK
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72 2# — E11f EERETH
Accounting BENBREER
Standards FO5  ARBHE
— Volume 11 HREAIEI10% R

BEBGER
E79 (BFTK)2

R2025F1 B1H sk & M F

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after !

1 January 2025 EHEER

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 R2026F1A1H S HiZ e M &
1 January 2026 EHIR £

8 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or 8 PH2027F1 A1 K EE BB F
after 1 January 2027 [ HA R A 3K

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but 4 M R B E 98 I A A B B - B A R
available for adoption M

SEomEsR BRERBERREERAT 91
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements. While a number of sections
have been brought forward from HKAS 1 with
limited changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new
requirements for presentation within the statement of
profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income
and expenses within the statement of profit or loss
into one of the five categories: operating, investing,
financing, income taxes and discontinued operations
and to present two new defined subtotals. It also
requires disclosures about management-defined
performance measures in a single note and
introduces enhanced requirements on the grouping
(aggregation and disaggregation) and the location of
information in both the primary financial statements
and the notes. Some requirements previously
included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as HKAS 8
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements. As a
consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33
Earnings per Share and HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting. In addition, there are minor consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted.
Retrospective application is required. The Group is
currently analysing the new requirements and
assessing the impact of HKFRS 18 on the
presentation and disclosure of the Group’s financial
statements.
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying
the recognition, measurement and presentation
requirements in other HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the
end of the reporting period, an entity must be a
subsidiary as defined in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, cannot have public
accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or
intermediate) that prepares consolidated financial
statements available for public use which comply
with HKFRSs. Earlier application is permitted. As the
Company is a listed company, it is not eligible to
elect to apply HKFRS 19. Some of the Company’s
subsidiaries are considering the application of
HKFRS 19 in their specified financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
date on which a financial asset or financial liability is
derecognised and introduce an accounting policy
option to derecognise a financial liability that is
settled through an electronic payment system before
the settlement date if specified criteria are met. The
amendments clarify how to assess the contractual
cash flow characteristics of financial assets with
environmental, social and governance and other
similar contingent features. Moreover, the
amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
financial assets with non-recourse features and
contractually linked instruments. The amendments
also include additional disclosures for investments in
equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial
instruments with contingent features. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with an
adjustment to opening retained profits (or other
component of equity) at the initial application date.
Prior periods are not required to be restated and
can only be restated without the use of hindsight.
Earlier application of either all the amendments at
the same time or only the amendments related to
the classification of financial assets is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

94

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts
Referencing Nature — dependent Electricity only
apply to contracts that reference nature-dependent
electricity and clarify the application of the ‘own-
use’ in-scope contracts. The
amendments to HKFRS 9 will now allow an entity
designating a contract referencing nature-dependent
electricity as the hedging instrument in a hedge of
forecast electricity transactions, to designate a
variable nominal amount of forecast electricity
transactions as the hedged item. HKFRS 7 has
been amended to require disclosures relating to
contracts that have been excluded from the scope
of HKFRS 9 as a result of the amendments. In such
cases, an entity must disclose in a single note:

requirements for

° Information about the contractual features that
expose the entity to variability in an underlying
amount of electricity and the risk that the entity
would be required to buy electricity during a
delivery interval where it cannot use it.

° Information about unrecognised contractual
commitments arising from such contracts.

° Qualitative and quantitative information about
the effects on the entity’s financial
performance for the reporting period interval
where it cannot use it.

The HKFRS 7 disclosure amendments must be
applied when the HKFRS 9 amendments are
applied. The clarifications regarding the ‘own use’
requirements must be applied retrospectively without
using hindsight, but the guidance permits hedge
accounting to be applied prospectively to new
hedging relationships designated on or after the date
of initial application. The amendment are not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

2. EFBEE)

2.3

EEMESRERNE BB R
HER (F)
BEYH®EELEIR R ETHR
(BRTAR)F RIRE B RGERNEN
A AEEBRIKER R IKEE
MER WEFTEAEEANEGLN
MIAAIERKWER - BEWHR
SFERNFSR (BT R RAFERE
KB ERKBEEINANEER
HHETHE AREFBRAENIRS

BMENRXZERKEHIER - FE
PR S R BT 2B 5T 2 KW
BREIMEHREREYHRE
ERFSREREBEZ I E L4
BES -HEBRAT BERERE
—HEREEATAR

e BRAHFHENEES A%
BEERAGENHBETSEDN
gk MERBEEXER
BENNRXNRERHEAERR
BEENHER

s HBREAAMANELMRER
BRIEENER -

[ ]
ol

AR REREABEERE
HTERVBRRTZENTEMLER

- E o
SN

i X

i

fein
il

E

BREMBHRELENEVROREE
RIMARERAEEMBREERE
SRERT R —HHER - R TE A
ERMBBLAEPEM - MR
BIER MRS ARTH B MKRER
B Hi g 2 18 45 7E #0371 % B8 K A BE
MRS At - EFTHARE
BHM BN IRIRL BERTE -



-

=
m&@%

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address
an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the
HKICPA. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

resulting from the

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into
another currency and how it shall estimate a spot
exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits or to the
cumulative amount of translation differences
accumulated in a separate component of equity,
where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

cumulative effect of
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

96

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11 set out amendments to
HKFRS 1,
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of the amendments
that are expected to be applicable to the Group are
as follows:

HKFRS 7 (and the accompanying

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
The amendments have updated certain
wording in paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and
paragraphs 1G1, 1G14 and 1G20B of the
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 for the
purpose of simplification or achieving
consistency with other paragraphs in the
standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In
addition, the amendments clarify that the
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 does not
necessarily illustrate all the requirements in the
referenced paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it
create additional requirements. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The
amendments clarify that when a lessee has
determined that a lease liability has been
extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the
lessee is required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of
HKFRS 9 and recognise any resulting gain or
loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A
of HKFRS 9 to remove potential confusion.
Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements:
The amendments clarify that the relationship
described in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is
just one example of various relationships that
might exist between the investor and other
parties acting as de facto agents of the
investor, which removes the inconsistency with
the requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS
10. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The
amendments replace the term “cost method”
with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7
following the prior deletion of the definition of
“cost method”. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

98

2.4 Material accounting policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.
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202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

the amount

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill
31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

as at
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

100

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial
instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

2. BIHBEMAE)
24 EERHBREN ()

EBEEHRBEE (B
ETRERAFLERABENERS
ELBEU(ReELBEUHEA)NA
WEEHE - WReELSEU(REE
AEBEMAS)W KD BERK
HE AEIAREEE - EEAFE
e ERBMEBE T SNEER AR
B[ e

WEECPEERSEEEM (K
ReELEMAR) MBBELR
MEMOEKCEL  AIEBELE
BER MEXEBHERBEIA
EBMEmE - EZEBRT M
ERBNREMEXHRRATES
BEURBHMOMMEHEEMTE -

AFEE
AEEREREHRAERETLES
MIAMNAFE - A FERMSE2
HERAERHREEFRZPHE
BEMBBONEBRIERREMT
NEER - R FEAENRERR
HEEEXBRABNRHINEE
KAFEFTEMHR(EEETENS
BRAMEELBERAESEMS
EITMEL - TEHRAEZTIS
BRAEEAEAZTG  BEN
BENAFENERBRMS2EE
REEXBETEREURE L&
EEEBENRITEFE



-

=
m&@%

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that
measurement as a whole:

is significant to the fair value

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

Level 3 —

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

102

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets and non-current assets classified as held for
sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
is allocated to an individual cash generating unit if it
can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. BIHBEMAE)
24 EERHBREN ()

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

104

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(il

(iv)

(il

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

2. BIHBEMAE)
24 EERHBREN ()
BB ()
b  EHAFA TIEMEEHE

ﬁ.:..

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(i)

iy
D S

= 7R
3
Rl
-
o
|

VBN
el it

=]
| i
Ry
30
|
it
i
ol

B 30
5

- Il g B

£ R
o) o F
WL N @,

o =
1 B ol
B -

e DI =R
ZF
&
S
P

9 5
Ty
|

[11 i}

ot R
&)
NS

I S
P m

[1] e 2
YO N My
3 | o

ot -
\
/
& 5

S 2f 1> B8
o = | 1]

eSS i
=

I B8 & |

p=lll3
N

m B
2 I A o

@ﬁl\]@ i

LA 7N £ &) sk B2
BEHMERNRE
A%%Hé@

A

i\
) E‘\Jﬁh\ﬁ

p=lll3
N

B
= i

2 (a) AT &8 Al A
R 22 )

9B
# W

El
gy‘—t

5
e
>F o
my o
L
o

Ny
i
i
HF
e

S

0 ol jmf Tt
. ?agl)%
H )
pui
I |
prs:
>_
i
=
I

=

\
A

ZERBIHEHMBERN
EAKERRASAEHE
IAEERFLAREE
EERAEBRS -



-

=
m&@'%

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 2.2%
Plant and machinery 4% to 33.33%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Buildings
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

106

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the assets
must be available for immediate sale in their present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets and their sale
must be highly probable.
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)
Non-current assets (other than financial assets)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs
to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as
held for sale are not depreciated.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

A trademark is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024

2024512 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

108

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 36 to 50 years
Leased properties 2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(o)

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the
present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease
receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

lease term. The

incentives

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is if there
modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

remeasured is a

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented
separately in the statement of financial
position.
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

110

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(¢)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of offices and car parking spaces (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option).

lease

Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost and fair value through profit or loss.

initial
asset’s

The classification of financial assets at
recognition depends on the financial
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade
contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

receivables that do not
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest (“SPPI”) on the principal

outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
irrespective of the

value through profit or loss,
business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model

determines whether cash flows will

collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held
within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

assets, or both. Financial

Financial

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention

marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that
is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or

sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

result from
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

112

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

114

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months
(@ 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 120 days past due.
The Group has rebutted the 90 days past due
presumption of default based on reasonable and
supportable information, including the Group’s credit
risk control practices and the historical recovery rate
of financial assets over 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

116

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. BIHBEMAE)
24 EERHBREN ()

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the
Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables,
and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

118

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivatives are taken directly to the
statement of profit or loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in
other comprehensive income and later reclassified to
profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or
loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
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2. BIHBEMAE)
24 EERHBREN ()

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a
maturity of generally within three months that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()
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2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

120

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences,

and the carryforward of

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that

it is

probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

122

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEREE)

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal
recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

in the amount of cumulative revenue

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. When the contract contains a

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EESTHRERER (&)
Revenue recognition WA BEE
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

124

(a)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods.

Provision of coffee and tea machine solutions
Revenue from the provision of coffee and tea
machine solutions is recognised over time in
accordance with the terms of respective
underlying agreements because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Sale of goods with provision of coffee and tea
machine solutions

The Group also engages in the provision of
coffee and tea machine solutions with the sale
of coffee and tea products. If customers’
purchases of coffee and tea products reach
the agreed minimum amount, the consideration
for the provision of coffee and tea machine
solutions for that month will be waived. Such
pricing arrangements are settled monthly or
quarterly and the provision of coffee and tea
machine solutions is bundled together with the
sale of coffee and tea products.

The contracts for bundled sale of goods with
provision of coffee and tea machine solutions
comprised of two performance obligations
because the promises to transfer the goods
and provide coffee and tea machine solutions
are capable of being distinct and separately
identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction price is
allocated based on the relative standalone
selling prices for the sale of coffee and tea
products and provision of coffee and tea
machine solutions. The revenue recognition
policies for the sale of goods and provision of
coffee and tea machine solutions are set out
above.
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2. BFBEE)
24 ERSTHHREN(F)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(d)  Provision of processing services
Revenue from the provision of processing
services is recognised at a point in time upon
transferring the promised services to a
customer, typically upon the transfer of the
processed coffee beans to the customer or as
the customer obtains control of the processed
coffee beans.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted.
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2024F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

126

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfiled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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31 December 2024
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for
the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original
described in the previous paragraph.

award, as

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end of
the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

128

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes

The Group continues to operate an occupational
retirement scheme registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. This
scheme has been granted exemption pursuant to
Section 5 of the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries. When an employee leaves the scheme
before his/her interest in the Company’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Company are reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited employer’s
contributions.

Since December 2000, the Group operates a
defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries. The Company’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Contributions from these schemes are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the schemes. The
assets of these schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting
period, but prior to the date of authorisation for
issue, about conditions that existed at the end of
the reporting period, it will assess whether the
information affects the amounts that it recognises in
its financial statements. The Group will adjust the
amounts recognised in its financial statements to
reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period
and update the disclosures that relate to those
conditions in light of the new information. For
non-adjusting events after the reporting period, the
Group will not change the amounts recognised in its
financial statements, but will disclose the nature of
the non-adjusting events and an estimate of their
financial effects,
estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

or a statement that such an

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

130

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the extent
that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.

132

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

recurring cash flows of overseas

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s financial
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

statements

revenues, expenses, liabilities, and their

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and provision of coffee and tea machine
solutions

The Group engages in the provision of coffee and tea
machine solutions that are either provided separately or
bundled together with the sale of coffee and tea products
to a customer. The provision of coffee and tea machine
solutions is a promise to transfer services in the future
and is part of the negotiated exchange between the
Group and the customer.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and provision of coffee and tea machine
solutions (Continued)

The Group determined that both sale of coffee and tea
products and provision of coffee and tea machine
solutions are capable of being distinct. The fact that the
Group regularly engages in the sale of coffee and tea
products and provision of coffee and tea machine
solutions on a stand-alone basis indicates that its
customers can benefit from both on their own. The Group
also determined that the promises to transfer coffee and
tea products and to provide the coffee and tea machine
solutions are distinct within the context of the contract.
The sale of coffee and tea products and provision of
coffee and tea machine solutions are not inputs to a
combined item in the contract. The Group is not
providing a significant integration service because the
presence of the sale of coffee and tea products and
provision of coffee and tea machine solutions together in
the contract does not result in any additional or combined
functionality and neither the coffee and tea products nor
the provision of coffee and tea machine solutions
customises the other. In addition, the sale of coffee and
tea products and provision of coffee and tea machine
solutions are not highly interdependent or highly
interrelated, because the Group would be able to sell the
coffee and tea products even if a customer declined the
Groups’ provision of coffee and tea machine solutions
and vice versa. Consequently, the Group allocates a
portion of the transaction price under such arrangement
to the sale of coffee and tea products and to the
provision of coffee and tea machine solutions based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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3.

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiaries’
stand-alone credit rating).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to ageing analysis
and other specific assessments of the Group’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of
goods based on historical sales patterns and other
specific attributes, and management experience and
judgement. Based on such
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
values. Due to changes
environment and customers’ preference, actual saleability
of goods and actual selling prices that could be realised
might be different from the original estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.

review, write-down of

in market and economic

Provision of expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The loss allowance for impairing of trade receivables is
made based on the assessment of their recoverability and
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables as well as
other quantitative and qualitative information and on
management’s judgement and assessment of forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

3.

136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-of
use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets, observable
market prices, or transaction prices of similar assets in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices, or other
valuation techniques, as appropriate, less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
During the year ended 31 December 2023, for
management purposes and for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group was organised into business units
based on their products and services and had reported
two operating segments as follows:

(@) the beverage solutions segment processes and
distributes coffee, tea and related complementary
products, sells food and beverages, coffee and tea
machines and other related products, and provides
coffee and tea machine solutions; and

(b)  the food products (“Food Products”) segment trades
frozen food.

Effective from the year of 2024, the Group revised the
composition of its operating segment(s) to align with the
changes made in the manner that the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (“CODM?”) reviews the Group’s operating
results in assessing performance and making decisions
about resource allocation. The CODM now assesses the
Group’s performance as a whole as a result of the Food
Products segment becoming less significant relative to the
overall business of the Group. The Group’s resources are
now integrated and no discrete operating segment
information is available. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong

Mainland China

Others

)
B A 3
H 1t

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

Hong Kong

Mainland China

N
B A 3

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax

assets and financial assets.

Information about a major customer

The Group’s revenues from sales to an external customer,
which in aggregate exceeded 10% of the Group’s total
revenue, amounted to HK$185,621,000 for the vyear

(2023: HK$179,089,000).

138 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2024
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e IER (F)

ih 32 &R

(a) KEINBEFHKA

2024
20244
HK$°000
FER

503,715
200,455
16,947

721,117

2023
20234
HK$'000
FAET

492,303
219,344
17,283

728,930

FRRAEBRTIREBEEFAEMLE

Bl o
(b) HFEEE
2024
20244
HK$’000
FTHB T

143,649
79,834

223,483

2023
2023%F
HK$'000
THAT

122,863
90,472

213,335

LPHFERBDEEERIRIBEEM
EMZ25 I ABREEREERE

REMEE -

AR-—BFEFEFHNESR

FAAEEBBHEHET —RIINTRFHWK
A A&185,621,0008 7t (2023 £F

179,089,000 7T.)
10% °

C HIEAREBEZRASE
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET

Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from contracts with

customers is as follows:

Types of goods or services

Sales of coffee, tea and other
related complementary products
and processing services

Sales of frozen food

Income from provision of
coffee and tea machine solutions

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong

Mainland China

Others

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

5.

W g~ E b WA K U 58 5 8R

iy &5

AEBNEPANWRANDTAT

2024
20244
HK$’000
FHExT
ERSREER
HEMLE - X K H A
HEEEER NI RE
691,205
HEZRR S 8,012
T2 (L 00 W A R 2S5 2 AR TS Y
I A 21,900
EPAYWR Az
721,117
& WS
BB 503,715
o B A 200,455
HAh 16,947
EPAHW AR
721,117
WARBRER
A X B ] B 699,217
B& A5 8 21,900
EPAYWR A
721,117

\

=
+
S

2023
20234
HK$’000
FAT

697,372
11,499

20,059

728,930

492,303
219,344
17,283

728,930

708,871
20,059

728,930
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W#H -HMkARWKZ F5E (&)
NET (Continued)

Revenue (Continued) Wi (&)

The total amount of transaction prices allocated to the R2024F12A31H  nEEEH TENE
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially FRBTXIE P RBETNXRZER
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2024 which are expected H-HEHR - FRAERBERRAB
to be recognised as revenue within one year amounted to 1,823,000/ 7T (20234 : 731,000/ 7T) °

HK$1,823,000 (2023: HK$731,000).

Other income and gains, net HWARKEFE
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: Hi A RKRFEDTAT
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Bank interest income ;RITH B WA 5,240 5,292
Gains on disposal of assets HESHERBIELER
classified as held for sale and BENANRYME - BE R&#E
items of property, plant and IH B W F R
equipment, net 11,624 —
Others H h, 459 645
17,323 5,937
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. mERAKN
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXKADTWET :
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Interest on bank borrowings RITERF B 257 522
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENEB 1,522 518
1,779 1,040
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is
(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold”
Depreciation”:
Right-of-use assets
Other items of property, plant
and equipment

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of intangible
assets™

Lease payments not included
in the measurement of
lease liabilities

Foreign exchange differences,
net*

Reversal of impairment of
trade receivables*

Impairment of trade
receivables*

Write-off of deposits paid for
purchases of items of
property, plant and
equipment*

Write-off of trade receivables*

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’
remuneration disclosed
in note 8)":

Salaries, wages, fees,
bonuses, other benefits
and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions
(defined contribution
schemes)*

Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value*
Write-off of inventories™®
(Gain)/loss on disposal of
assets classified as held for
sale and items of property,
plant and equipment, net*##
Losses on changes in
fair value of derivative
financial instruments, net*

7. BR®AD R

arrived at after charging/

AN E% 8 B W R g A T

& B EMK
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2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#& T FETT
435,730 447,988
12,530 12,800
25,351 26,401
37,881 39,201

2,096 2,181

- 90

923 1,013

1,428 586

(814) (437)

803 1,844

404 —

1,056 363
114,020 110,662

5,971 5,956
119,991 116,618

764 619

320 436
(11,624) 699

756 185
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

7.

142

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

*k

##

The cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2024
amounted to HK$475,157,000 (2023: HK$488,377,000),
including, but not limited to, cost of inventories sold of
HK$435,730,000 (2023: HK$447,988,000), depreciation
charge of HK$15,785,000 (2023: HK$15,855,000) and
employee benefit expenses of HK$13,317,000 (2023:
HK$13,758,000).

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions. At 31 December 2024, the Group has no
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions
to the pension schemes in future years (2023: Nil).

The amortisation of intangible assets is included in “General
and administrative expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

These amounts are included in “Other income and gains,
net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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B E2024F 128318 IFF & 1 & 5k A
/B475,157,0007%8 7T (20234 : 488,377,000
B BEETEREEFEKA
435,730,000 7T (20234F : 447,988,00078
JT) * ¥ & 5 15,785,000/ JT (20234F :

15,855,000/ 70) ' A K & B & FI B XX

13,317,000/ 7T (20234F : 13,758,000/ 7T) °
ZEREAGABEREMEA LT

B
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a),

8. EEHM
REFEHAX

ZfrEs EmRR &

A&
B2 A GBI 5383(1)(@) ~ (b) * () R (OiE K
BAQB (BRBEESENDER) RBIF25

(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance FIEBRsFRNESHMOT -
and Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fees we 900 900
Other emoluments: Hifi & -
Salaries, allowances, other e 2B EMEF R
benefits and benefits in kind EWmE 9,844 9,516
Performance related bonuses BB S TEAT 189 339
Pension scheme contributions BREEEIMHR
(defined contribution schemes) (R EHRETED 747 701
10,780 10,556
11,680 11,456
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIFHMITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FAZNTFTEIIERTESTHES
directors during the year were as follows: m
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang BEZ 4L 300 300
Mr. Wong Man Fai T B A& 300 300
Mr. Lok Kung Chin Hardy B A5 IE B & 300 300
900 900

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2023: Nil).

FAVERBIIFNTESIHHE
b 3 BN (20234 : £) o

ToMEFH ERERERER QR 143
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31 December 2024
2024%12 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EZEZ=HM (&)

(b) Non-executive directors (b) FEHMITEE
There were no fees or other emoluments paid or FAVERIFENTESCNHER
payable to the non-executive directors during the B #2 & 3k H % B (20234F « &) -

year (2023: Nil).

(c) Executive directors (c) BITES

2024 2024
Mr. Wong Tat Tong HETELE - 6,561 - 459 7,020
Ms. Fan Yee Man BEH/)E - 1,884 122 188 2,194
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bernard SEBELE - 1,399 67 100 1,566
= 9,844 189 747 10,780
2023 2023
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEERE - 6,420 188 448 7,056
Ms. Fan Yee Man B guMA - 1,792 93 179 2,064
Mr. Kam Chun Pong Bemard &R A L4 - 1,304 58 74 1,436
- 9,516 339 701 10,556
During the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Wong Tat RE E2024F12A31B I FE EESE
Tong has waived his performance related bonuses with an EECHREBEESIHBEAL 28R
amount of HK$178,000 (2023: Nil). Except for the above, 178,000/ 7T (20234 : #&) o fr L it &
there was no other arrangement under which a director SN FRABIBEESNEXRERELTW
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the % B ) At 22 HE (20234F - &)
year (2023: Nil).
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by FA AEBUVEMES BN
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or BERAMAREBR I MAREEH 2/ 2
upon joining the Group or as compensation for the loss of JBh Sk 1E 2 B B8 1) 47 18 (20234F : #8]) o

office (2023: Nil).
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included three (2023: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2023:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances, other benefits

and benefits in kind VA =
Performance related bonuses 4B SR TE AT

RIKEE IR
(S EHREE)

Pension scheme contributions
(defined contribution schemes)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

9. EEBRSHFMES

FAN AEEBREEaFNEERE=
BEE(2023F - MB) HEHMFIE
BN EXHAS TR 2 FWIEAR A
EEYTETBABNME (2023F © =
B)ETHNEENTFMFBLOT

e R EMENR

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FHEIT
3,314 4,839

58 79

121 125
3,493 5,043

HEHMNTUTHEENSSEHES Gkl
EMETBERAB)ABRLT :

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T Z2,000,0005% 7T 2 3

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by
the Group to the above individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2023: Nil).

FR-AFELERAEBEADNKE
MEA B S - 1F& %S0 A K B 3
A5 (B 1% # 5% B 3k B BB 4 (8 (20234F -
') o
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

10.

146

TAXATION
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2023: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2023: 8.25%) and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland
China have been provided at the rate of 25% (2023:
25%).

BI# — &
FAXH

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
(Over)/underprovision in prior

years BETR
Current — Mainland China BNEf — PR A
Charge for the year* FRLZ M~
Deferred iR &
Total tax charge for the year FARNFIE B @

During the vyear ended 31 December 2024, a 5%
withholding income tax amounting to HK$3,544,000 (2023:
Nil) was levied in respect of dividend distribution arising
from profits of a subsidiary established in Mainland China.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

BEFE(BREEEB)

10. BB
BEABRENHINEBL  KEEHEA
TAEREREMER -
EBMNERDIBEBEFRNES BRI MG
= FE R B % M #916.5% (20234 : 16.5% )
PR EARE®E B QF B R
SBHEMAFNTHAERBTERIN - Z
B B A & B 2,000,000 7T (20234 :
2,000,0007% JT) & & &R i '@ A $28.25%
(20231 : 8.25% ) @ B - H &4 B R Bl a
I B3216.5% (20234 : 16.5% ) & i o &
A 3 I SR B0 ) 2 B T8 T 225% (2023
F 1 25% )T RETIE o
2024 2023
20245 20234
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHBxT FET
8,401 7,731
(50) 7
5,714 1,829
24 885 720
14,950 10,287

* RE E2024F 128318 ILFE > i — [
R AN E AR 2 &FEE
BB 9K M Uks% 2z T8I0 AT 15 B
3,544,000/ 7T (20234 : 4&) -
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31 December 2024

2024412 A31H

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. Bi1E (&2
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit FABEEBIARRREZHWBE AR S
before tax at the statutory tax rate to Hong Kong in with BRSEME) AERERFE 2B
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries operate sz EARESIY HBEAEEE
and/or are domiciled to the tax charge at the Group’s BRHEFECHBEIHN CHENOT

effective tax rate is as follows:

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Profit before tax B 5t B 4 A 74,041 58,998
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory BRERBEEMEFENNIEA
tax rate 12,217 9,735
Higher tax rate for specific RERVABE R KA
jurisdictions or enacted by local EHEEH=E
authority 990 793
Adjustments in respect of current 3B Hi S BN AT TH /9 38 22
tax of previous periods (50) 7
Income not subject to tax BERBTEUWA (2,768) (489)
Expenses not deductible for tax EEA =R 1,055 306
Tax losses utilised from previous FERBTHEMNIIEEE
periods (162) (147)
Tax losses not recognised ANERMIEEE 124 82
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on ¥ — R 5 A Bl (A 1 5 37 A9 Y B8
the distributed profits of a N A DK = K95%ET 12
subsidiary established in Mainland T8 1 %% & 5 £
China 3,544 —
Tax charge at the Group’s effective EAEB BRI R EH
tax rate I X H 14,950 10,287
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

11. DIVIDENDS 11.

148

The dividends recognised as distributions during the
reporting period and proposed by the Company after the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Dividends recognised as

distributions during the reporting

period:

2022 final dividend — HK2.19 2022F REA B, — B
cents per ordinary share A%2.197% 11l

2023 interim dividend — HK1.84 2023F HHAR B — B
cents per ordinary share f5%1.847% 1l

2023 final dividend — HK2.22 2023F RHIIR B — B
cents per ordinary share f%2.225% 1l

2024 interim dividend — HK2.76 2024F R HAR B — B
cents per ordinary share f%2.767% 11l

Special dividend — HK13.87 FRIRE — BKRE®
cents per ordinary share f%13.8778 {1l

Eﬁ /éLI\
iS

I
o

il
=

I
5

I
o

Dividends proposed after the end of #HREHIKR B EHIRN LS

*k

the reporting period:

Special dividend — Nil
(2023: HK13.87 cents)
per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend —
HK2.16 cents (2023: HK2.22
cents) per ordinary share

(20234 : 13.877& 1)

BEARPKRE —
SR EBR2.1675 1
(20234 : 2.227 1)

The special dividend has been calculated by reference to
720,731,512 shares in issue on 4 March 2024. It was paid
on 11 March 2024.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2024 has been calculated by reference to
720,731,612 shares in issue on 6 March 2025 and is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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RIS — BREBRASE

*k

YIREHRR - AR AR KRS M HEER
DR R Z B BT

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
- 15,784
- 13,261
16,000 —
19,892 —
99,966 —
135,858 29,045
- 100,000*
15,563** 16,000
15,563 116,000

BRI B Jh 2 & H2024F3H4H 2
720,731,512 B BT ES L -
BRI B 2 R2024F3A11H R A »

H E2024F 128318 IFFEMEHRB
B B Ty & E R2025F3A6H 2
720,781 5120 B BT D 5T & - 7BFHF
ARERENREERRABFRNE LER
FAEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRRIEBRESREAEBGEER

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE ZF

PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for B E2024F12A31HLFE - BREARER
the year ended 31 December 2024 is based on the profit MOREBFAEAREBRERFTEAR
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the MERNBINRERFABBTEINEBER
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary ook 15 #720,732,0000% (20234 :
shares of 720,732,000 (2023: 720,732,000) outstanding 720,732,0008%) st B /8 1 -

during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in B E£20244F K2023F12A31H EFE + &
issue during the years ended 31 December 2024 and SEVEERTERESEBR -
2023.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share HTESREAREERNTIRE

are based on:

2024 2023
2024%F 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THERT FAT
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity FAUAtE G E AR N #% & F
holders of the parent, used in the MR AR L @ERITHE AR
basic and diluted earnings per 15 A
share calculations 59,091 48,711
’000 000
F & T &
Shares [iqv)
Weighted average number of AU ESRERNRES
ordinary shares outstanding AN EFADZITEI
during the year, used in the basic & % 14 F 5 &
and diluted earnings per share
calculations 720,732 720,732

ToMEFH ERERERER QR 149



= Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 o= MR ()

31 December 2024

2024%12 A31H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERZE
31 December 2024 20245128318
At 1 January 2024: Ro024E1A1A :
Cost 2 20,439 81,429 101,868 91,817 170,242 74,740 8,328 345,121 446,995
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERFE
impairment (5,000) (63,883) (68,883) (25,742 (101,204 (65,127) (8,145) (190,308) (259,191)
Net carrying amount SEFE 15,439 17,546 32,985 66,075 68,048 19,613 183 154,819 187,804

At 1 January 2024, net of acoumulated  H\2024F1 A1R > MR 25

depreciation and impaiment TERBE 15,439 17,546 32,985 66,075 68,948 19,613 183 154,819 187,804
Additions RE = 24,252 24,252 o 21,705 3,180 = 24,885 49,137
Depreciation provided for the year ERHRNE (476) (12,054) (12,530) (3,035) (15,227) (6,909) (180) (25,351) (37,881)
Disposals/written off HE/H = (1,109) (1,109) - () ™) - (845) (1,954)
Exchange realignment ExRE (347) (57) (d04) (481) (184) (169) - (1,434) (1,838)

At 31 December 2024, net of accumulated 202412317 » Mk

depreciation and impaiment ZHAERAE 14,616 28,578 43,194 62,559 73,869 15,643 3 152,074 195,268
At 31 December 2024: R024E12A318 :
Cost e 19979 103,073 123,052 91,021 179,095 72,848 8319 351,283 474,335
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERAE
impaiment (5,363) (74,495) (79,858) (28,462) (105,226) (57,208) (8,316) (199,209) (279,067)
Net carrying amount FESFE 14,616 28,578 43,194 62,559 73,869 15,643 3 152,074 195,268
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31 December 2023

At 1 January 2023:

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment

Addtions

Depreciation provided for the year
Disposals/written off

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale

(note 18)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment

At 31 December 2023:

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment

Net carrying amount

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets
FRELE

Leased
Leasehold land properties

RELH HENF
HK$'000 HKS'000

Tin FEL
(note (b)) (note ()
(P3H0)) (B3ta))

20235127318
202351 F1A -

WA 20,821 68,180

ZHNERAE

(4,609) (52,659)

SHTE 16,212 15,521
R2023EF1 18 DB 23

TERAA 16212 15,521
RE - 14,352
FRiENE (485) (12,315)
HE/HH - (26)
BYESEARELEY

BE(Mi1s) - -
ERAE (288) 14
2023124318 - M

ZHNERAE 15,439 17546
20235128318 :

A 20,439 81,429

ZHNERAE

(5,000) (63,883)
RESE 15,439 17546

Total

At
HK$'000
i

89,001

(57,268)

31,783

31733
14352
(12,800

(26)

)

32,985

101,868

(68,883)

32,985

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

13. X -BERRKE(E)

Buildings
BF

HKS'000
TERL

95,995

26,129)

69,826

69,826

(3159

66,075

91817

(25.74)

66,075

— T —
=
—=

Plant and
machinery

FiR RER
HKS 000
TET

184,882

(119,789)

65,09

65,093
0347
(15,130)

(o0g)

(1,861)
(593

68,948

170242

(101,294)

68,948

7o 4F 4 2

Owned assets

BERAE

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
B ER
RERGE
HKS'000
TR

100,086

(77862)

22,224

004
849
1732

(539)

.716)
{117

4740

(55.127)

19,613

Motor
vehicles

i
HK$ 000
TEL

9,681

6,846

83

83

(386)
(266)

183

8,328

6,149

Total
A3

HK$'000
THT

390,604

(232,626)

157,978

157,978
30,83
26,401)

(1712

(4,753
(1,132

154,819

345,121

(190,308)

154,819

RABEEBEZERERAR

Total
a3

HK$'000
TR

479,605

(289,894)

189,711

189,711

45,191

(39201

(173%)

(4,753)

(1,406)

187,804

446,99

(259,191

187,804
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)  The Company leases certain of its offices, warehouses and
staff quarters. Leases for these assets are negotiated for
terms ranging from 2 to 5 years and all the lease
payments are fixed.

(b)  Included in the Group’s leasehold land are two warehouses
in Mainland China, with costs of HK$653,000 and
HK$601,000, respectively, which the Group has not been
able to obtain their real estate ownership certificates. The
two warehouses were fully depreciated in prior years.

14. INVENTORIES

Raw materials =AM #t
Work-in-progress TS
Finished goods A on

152 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

13. M¥E - BEREE(E)
B EE

(@) ARAHEEEETHAZ BERET
BE REEEMNHERRESF M
PRERENREBERE-

b) XEEWNBETHAIEREMLRTER
HHEEE - KA 5 5l A653,000/% T &
601,000/ 70 * AEE KEEMEGHF
EffEEZ -ZmMEEEERBEFE
EHTE -

14. &
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
106,966 77,614
340 254
56,954 53,634
164,260 131,502
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024

2024412 A31H
15. TRADE RECEIVABLES 15. ESEWRKE
2024 2023
2024 2023%F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Trade receivables g 5 e A 106,206 126,252
Impairment BB (5,499) (11,083)
100,707 115,169
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly AEFHERFII VL ZXRGERETEN
on credit, except for new customers, where the Group EEAE EHHEFAUBETERERN
normally requires cash on delivery. The credit periods R ZEH—RAEI0K - BHNEER
generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each customer has HERBEREEREE NEBRNES
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain THIRBEERNRIE  WHRLEEEE
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a NENREEERR @HBESRAERE
credit control team to minimise credit risk. Overdue BEHRN AEETEREZZEK
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The RIBEHRBFEEMEBERGIELEME
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit ARRA -BHEWFBEILTEE -

enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

TEONEER ERERZERER QA 153



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R M (]

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net

of loss allowance, is as follows:

15.

EZEBRREGE)
RIBEMWR - BB ERREZ R H T
(REZAHLNGERE®H BT

2023
20234
HK$'000
FET
Within 30 days 30K A 95,102 100,546
31 to 60 days 31E60K 3,716 7,614
61 to 90 days 61E290K 1,425 4,844
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 250 1,435
121 to 180 days 121E180K 96 396
Over 180 days B iE180K 118 334
100,707 115,169

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of EZRWFBRE BEBEEEZSHNOT

trade receivables are as follows:

2023
20234
HK$'000
FET
At beginning of year N 11,083 9,816
Impairment losses recognised EERBEEIE 803 1,844
Impairment losses reversed BERERE (814) (437)
Amount written off as uncollectible it £ -~ &] Ux [@ & 58 (5,462) -
Exchange realignment [ i 3 & (111) (140)
At end of the year RER 5,499 11,083

154
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% sk MY & (&)
31 December 2024
2024512 A31H

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15. EZEWRIEBE (£E)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar

REREAHORBBEREETRE
D UFFERMEEER - BEXHE
RAREABRUBERANZEER, D
METOMA(RIE D E) ME M A&

HEE ZHERRAARMEES
EHEERNESANTENERAE
OB H AT T R R 1 B
ABRAFER -

loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

FERASERABRERTENEZE
WHRIENEERREREINNT

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

2024 20244

Credit-impaired receivables 1z B i B JE W 7 18 100% 3,670 3,670

Trade receivables aged: B 5 R WURIE 2 ARER -
Current to 30 days past B B 2= 180 HA30K

due 0.41% 98,961 401

31 to 60 days past due w1 HI31 260K 13.62% 1,468 200
61 to 90 days past due #1 #3612 90K 31.13% 1,028 320
91 to 120 days past due B HI91 =120k 60.78% 232 141
121 to 180 days past due  #@WHI121E180K 78.43% 204 160
Over 180 days past due 1 2 B #B180K 94.40% 643 607

106,206 5,499

T OMEEH RRBERERARAR 155
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

2023 2023%F

Credit-impaired receivables 1= & J& (& & Ug 7% 18

Trade receivables aged: B 5 R HRIE 2 R ¢
Current to 30 days past B HA = 8 HAB0 K
due

31 to 60 days past due B HIB1 = 60K
61 to 90 days past due w1 Hie1 290K
91 to 120 days past due #HI91 =120k
121 to 180 days past due  #HI121E 180K
Over 180 days past due B HAFB 3@ 180°K

16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments T RIE
Deposits i

Other receivables H b f& U 3R I8
Less: Non-current portion B FEBNEREE
Current portion BIHA &8 2

156 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2024

15. EZ EWFE (&)

Expected Gross
credit loss carrying
rate amount
EHESE
SRS B 4|
HK$’000
THETT
100% 7,360
0.69% 111,901
23.67% 3,439
30.05% 1,075
56.10% 877
76.60% 423
84.45% 1,177
126,252

Expected
credit loss
EHEE
B
HK$’000
FBT

7,360

776
814
323
492
324
994

11,083

16. AR E - ZE R HEMEKRFIE

2024
2024
HK$’000
FET

12,487
2,946
3,545

18,978
(1,773)

17,205

2023
20234
HK$’000
FAET

8,437
2,815
2,403

13,655
(1,519)

12,136
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R %% AR Y R ()

31 December 2024
202412 A31H

16.

17.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2024
and 2023, the
minimal.

loss allowance was assessed to be

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances Re RRITEH
Time deposits 7 B 1F K
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$34,163,000 (2023: HK$96,667,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Certain cash at banks earns interest at floating rates
based on relevant bank deposit rates. Short term time
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

16.

17.

ERARE - R REMEWRRIE
(4&

AL AR & B & B LT BRI | HE K
ek R RS B IER ERIBE B - I
20244 N2023F 12 A31H @ E B B EFT
EABMD -

RERRSEEY
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT TAETT
105,917 168,324
64,529 85,428
170,446 253,752

RIBEBRR  AEBUARE ([ARE])
FHEMIA S MIRITHE B D B A34,163,000
7870 (20234 : 96,667,000/ 7C) - AR
TR EHRALBAMER R BEFE
A Hh B OB B B2 AG DI R (A5 BE - S BE 2
NEERBHATE) ~NEEEEBRERE
KEINNEZEBMIET BARBHBRA
H i EHE o

HTROTASREMERITERA XK
FREREA R - 52 HIE B S 7
BIBAEEATTE  RFAEEHAKES
FRME - Wi E B R EPFRM X
A B - RITERREREFRIDIFN
PMEE R of M HA 0 58 H) Re SRV ERTT o

ZNFEFH ERBERERARAE 157
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

18. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

158

Non-current assets held for sale FEHENFERBEE

Building and equipment BFRFE

In November 2023, the board of directors of a subsidiary
resolved to sell a property, together with certain
machinery and equipment of the subsidiary, which had
been used mainly for the Group’s business conducted in
that property (collectively referred to as the “Non-current
Assets”) to an independent third party. This is in line with
a disposal plan then committed by management. The sale
was completed on 20 February 2024, in line with
management’s original expectation.

Accordingly, for the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, the Non-current Assets
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$4,753,000 as
at 31 December 2023 were classified and accounted for
as assets held for sale as their carrying amounts would
be recovered principally through a sale transaction.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

8. 7TEARAKFLENEE

2024 2023
2024 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET

- 4,753

2023F11 A — B RARIMNESS
BRE—BBUF=ZFLEHEBEAR—
BRnEE - ERE T REE  EERiE
ZARAEERZMEETHNER (5K
[SERBEE]) - LBHAEERE S KK
EE L SRS - % B B R20245F2H20
HE NRFAEEEBHRIITER-

B I - 5L 2023512 831H M &2 & B %
MRS > R2023F12A31H MR ®E
B 494,753,000 THIERB EEE » 18
WARIARELEEE ARARE
BEHEFERBHERZKE -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% sk MY & (&)
31 December 2024
2024512 A31H

19.

20.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

10. ES R\
RBER BHEMN KBS BB DT
EREAEMT -

2023

20234

HK$'000

FETT

Within 1 month 118 A 75,406 62,544
1 to 2 months 1Z22{# A 849 45
2 to 3 months 2Z31E A 13 18
Over 3 months B 3B31E A 982 753
77,250 63,360

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 30 to 60 days.

EZEMAELER B K —MKN30E60X

MAELT -

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EstRERHMENSKIE
2023
20234
Notes HK$’000
iik=2 T T
Contract liabilities aHaE (a) 1,823 731
Other payables H i E S BOR (b) 2,602 2,712
Deposits received BEliEE - 2,580
Accruals and other liabilities EErREREME R 45,666 38,109
50,091 44,132

“ECFFR BLBEBRERERAT 159
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

20. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

160

(@)

Contract liabilities represent advance payments received
from customers for the Group to deliver coffee and tea
products. The increase in contract liabilities in 2024 was
mainly due to an increase in advance payments received
from customers in relation to tea products at the end of
the year.

Movements in contract liabilities during the year are as
follows:

At the beginning of the year RE]
Additions NE

Revenue recognised during the year* F ARz
At the end of the year RER

*

Revenue recognised during the vyear that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period amounted to HK$731,000

(2023: HK$917,000).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have average
terms of one to three months.
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20. Bt REREMENRE (F

B EE

(@) AHBEERANEE YNGR IRE M
i [ & = WCERFE < IR © 2024F 89 & 49
BERM TEARFRELEERP K
BRREMROBFILMATE -

FREHNEBENEFHNT :

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

731 917

3,272 1,239
(2,180) (1,425)

1,823 731

* ERBEHVFAGHEENSE
N RIS - & 5 A731,000% 7T
(20234 : 917,000 L) °

() HMEMNFELAFE  FHHRE—
E=={ER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 3% sk MY & (&)
31 December 2024
2024512 A31H

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. fTHE€®MI A

Assets/(liabilities) EE/(8F)
2023
20234
HK$'000
FET
Forward currency contracts REE®EH 96 (161)
The Group has entered into various forward currency AEEBIUSERPEKSLYUNER
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. These HEY AR ZEEHINESLHKRERE
forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge RAREFE R WIEAFETABZE - I
purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or HPREK S LM AT EE 756,000
loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging forward 7 7T R A B B (20234 ¢ 185,000/
currency contracts amounting to HK$756,000 were TEHMR) BEREEER -
debited (2023: HK$185,000 were debited) to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.
22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 22. st B8 1TEX
2023
20234
Contractual
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000
ER IR ES
(%) FH A FHET
Current B 58
Trust receipt loans ERBIEER Hong Kong On demand 4,013 Hong Kong On demand 7,130
— unsecured — K Interbank RER Interbank REK
Offered Offered
Rate Rate
(“HIBOR”) (“HIBOR”)
+1.4% +1.4%
BEREITRE BEBRITH
ERBEANE EFREFE
(T&RBEBIT ([EBRIT
BEFLED EEZi¥-N))
+1.4% +1.4%

T OMEEH RRBERERARAR 161
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R % AR Y B ()

31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amount of lease

liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January

New leases

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Payments

Early termination of a lease

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at
31 December

Analysed into:
Current portion
Non-current portion

M A1TEEREE
Mg
FRERNMBER

(D7
RAAKILEE
BE 5 8 &

M12A31E M EREE

DA

BIER &R >
FE BN EA &R o
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3. HEE®E

2024
20244
HK$’000
FER

17,957
24,252

1,522
(13,101)

(1,354)
(62)

29,214

11,869

17,345

29,214

BERWT

2023
20234
HK$'000
FAT

16,024
14,352

518
(12,955)

(26)
44

17,957

7,433

10,524

17,957



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B % AR M (])

31 December 2024

2024412 4318
23. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 23. HE&E (&)
2023
2023%F
HK$'000
FAET
Analysed into lease liabilities AMREEHEAE:
repayable:
Within one year —F R 11,869 7,433
In the second year B _F 10,648 4,780
In the third to fifth years, E=ZFFEFRLF
inclusive (BiEEEME) 6,697 5,744
29,214 17,957
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities, based on the HEBBENIBI W IHREMBHREKM
contractual undiscounted payments, is disclosed in note FASAFTEBEM AL R KIEMSH -

34 to the financial statements.

e

it
Bk

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to iNEE
leases are as follows:

HEEAHENESEOT

2023
20234
HK$'000
FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 1,522 518
Depreciation charge of right-of-use {# A& ETE L B
assets 12,530 12,800
Expense relating to short-term ERAEHPHEERT GFA—®RK
leases (included in general and THREXZ)
administrative expenses) 923 1,013
Total amount recognised RIE s R 5
in profit or loss 14,975 14,331
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note &R & w4858 R B S 2k I 5228(0)
28(c) to the financial statements. B EE -
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31 December 2024

2024F12 A31H
24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EERE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BRERBEEEREENTRNZ2EFHNT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE

At 1 January 2023 #2023%F1 518 7,366 - 7,366
Deferred tax charged to the REANFTAGEERR

consolidated statement ZIRERIE (H5E10)

of profit or loss during the year

(note 10) 933 847 1,780
Exchange realignment BE W, E B (68) — (68)
At 31 December 2023 and R2023F12A31H &

at 1 January 2024 202441 A1 A 8,231 847 9,078
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to R &Rt A (%)

the consolidated statement REBmR BT

of profit or loss during the year 38 (K} ££10)

(note 10) 322 (605) (283)
Exchange realignment BE H A B (94) - (94)
At 31 December 2024 #0024 12 A31H 8,459 242 8,701
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEmETME (E)
31 December 2024
2024512 A31H

24, EEBIE(E
EEREEE

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2023 M2023F1A1A 5 2,253 364 - - 2,622
Deferred tax credited/ ~ WERBEE,/(GTA)

(charged) to the BEBERREL

consolidated B8 (M 5E10)

statement of profit or

loss during the year

(note 10) 1) 260 (122) 923 - 1,060
Exchange realignment BE 5 5H 2 - (35) - - - (35)
At 31 December 2023 72023512 A31H

and at 1 January 2024%F1A1H

2024 4 2,478 242 923 - 3,647
Deferred tax credited/ ~ REREE,(FFA)

(charged) to the REBRRZEL

consolidated 18 (Fff 5510)

statement of profit or
loss during the year
(note 10) (1) (538) (216) (666) 253 (1,168)

Exchange realignment BN B = (36) = = = (36)
At 31 December 2024 20245124318 3 1,904 26 257 253 2,443

ST OEFR EREREZERERQF
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

24,

166

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$31,029,000 (2023: HK$31,258,000), subject
to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
mainly in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time or due to the unpredictability of their future
taxable profit streams and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The
Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

R B B AR R FE R
HYIE FE B 1R B ¥ R

R A B ISR R R TR
FYIE SE B TR B 1R 3 FR

24, EEBIE(E)

MENME HFETEEREEERAR
ERMBIRRKRAEE - LB B RE M
FOAKEMERRBELHONAT

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FETT
2,201 2,800
(8,459) (8,231)
(6,258) (5,431)

AEBREBEENABRTEBEAR
31,029,00078 JT (20234 : 31,258,000/ JT)
(EREBEANERRAEBEERBAEE) A
EREAERELREEBEB AR ZRK
R RF AR ETEEAHESED
MEBAREEBE —BEME skhAREX
RERB @A TR EEERT
AP AAEENIEEEN S HRR
TR B ERZSEEEERELCHIE
BE o

BEFEACEERGEREZ  EFER
MK EREDERIINEIEEES
TR P B BB 10% M TEINT - ZBFEB
200841 A1 H #8 £ 3 - I i A »20074F
12ABTB AT -G FREEMBE
AAERERE A B RS E - A6k
HERAREMEMNTE - Bt - NEBEERR
72 E 5 B R RK SZ BY BT B A B §£2008
FIATBREEANAF D IKHERESH
MTEIEL
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$60,845,000 at
31 December 2024 (2023: HK$133,819,000).

25. ISSUED CAPITAL

Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each BT H T RAR
Issued and fully paid: EETEER
720,731,512 (2023: 720,731,512)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

76 T Y & i X

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes
pages 79 to 80.

in equity on

(@) Contributed surplus
Pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder of the Company dated 25 August 2017,
the Company reallocated its share premium account
to the contributed surplus by way of reduction of the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account to nil and transfer of the credit
amount arising from the share premium reduction to
the contributed surplus.

24, EERIE(E)

MR2024F 1283318 - M ER A EBE R F
B P AR SZ A BT BB A R B B AR FE I B Y
AEHBFMAZFHOEMNRERET
B -ZEERE ZEMNBLARENRE
RPN BE 99 K B B8 & o R2024%F12
H31H » ER A E R E R RMNIEE
EEMTERLERECHBEENY
B = B 42 % %) 560,845,0008 T &
(20234 : 133,819,000/ 7T) °

25. EETHRAK

2,000,000,0004% & A% E {60.10

720,731,5120% (20234 :
720,731,512/%) & I E {50.10

2024 2023
2024 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
200,000 200,000
72,073 72,073

26. &
AEBRAREE RFEAFENFEERE
REBERETIZOENFA R E
RED -

(a) AR
RIEA R A E B — R R2017F
8ASHBBEMEEARER  ARA]
BERMZEREFTSIREAAR
B FRAABRMDEERZ2EE
BRESEARES - W8 EE R G5
BEMEEZERSCEEREZHA
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

26.

27.

168

RESERVES (Continueqd)

(b) Statutory reserve funds
Pursuant to the relevant Mainland China rules and
regulations, subsidiaries of the Group which are
domestic enterprises in Mainland China are required
to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after
taxation, as determined under Mainland China
accounting regulations and their respective articles of
association, to the reserve funds until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. The transfer to the reserve funds must be
made before distributing dividends to shareholders
of the respective subsidiaries.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
similar to the terms of the Share Option Scheme except
that (i) no further options could be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme established prior to 11
May 2018 (the “Listing Date”); and (i) the exercise price
and the exercise period of the share options are different
as further detailed below.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include, amongst
others, the Company’s executive directors and other
employees of the Group. The Schemes were approved
and adopted on 15 December 2017 (the “Adoption
Date”). The Share Option Scheme, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from the Adoption Date.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Schemes is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the Listing Date. The
maximum number of shares issued and issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Schemes
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates which result in the total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company.

The total number of options available for grant under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme
were zero Share and 72,397,931 Shares, respectively, as
at 1 January 2024, and zero Share and 72,397,931
Shares, respectively, as at 31 December 2024.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

27.

BRETEE)

B REBRET S A RANRITER
REETERMSEOBRMHEE &%
HERARBRLHHEHEHTREO K
10% » REM12ME A BERIEERED
BOARTTEREASNERAER
SEENENEE REITHEEBAR
BRI A 2 AT B91% o Efa
— IR Ut TR R BR A R AR R A X
RAE LS ERALE -

AARNBESE THRARITERRN
TRARSEHEARLBERE  BEEH
BB IFRITESE < I WEAARR
ATEMRABIFATESTHEMR
FHE B AR A B Bk - A B AR
RAREERES S R H S H R
PrEBKRERTEENBEZRL AH
AIE(BHERE RN EM12(8 B #E S %
THEBTTRZBATOROD A B
87K N R P Aa] B ) 2 3% 1T AR 19 #90.1%
HRARARBRONE L B BT ESE
MAREEBEEEET  MAEERK
RAE LSRR ALE -

BRELITHTHBEAZTERELANAK
RAIRRRKERERROERN o

20241 A18 - RIBE XA EE A
BRETS RERETETHEEARE
IREBE D R BTN &72,397,931 1%
B% 5 ¢ T R20245F12A31H B D Bl A
BB A7 K2 72,397,931 AL AL 17 »
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2024F12 A31H

27.

170

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
Share Option Scheme

The offer of a grant of share option under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 7 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme is
determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options. The exercise price of share options under
the Share Option Scheme is determinable by the
directors, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer of the share options, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

No options were granted or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is HK$0.594 per share and the
share options are exercisable commencing on the day
falling on the Listing Date and ending on the day
immediately before the tenth anniversary of the Listing
Date.

The share options granted prior to the Listing under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme which had not been
exercised before 10 May 2021 (being the day immediately
before the third anniversary of the Listing Date) were
already forfeited or lapsed in all on 10 May 2021
pursuant to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. As such, the Company had no share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2023 and 2024.
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of HK$24,252,000 (2023:
HK$14,352,000) and HK$24,252,000 (2023:
HK$14,352,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for properties.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
2024

At 1 January 2024 202451 H1H
Changes from financing cash Bt & IR & 7% & & &
flows

Non-cash changes Rz EE
New leases FHEE
Accretion of interest 7 B K

Early termination of a lease  RAT&ZILHAE
Effect of changes in foreign  [EXEEHHFE
exchange rates

At 31 December 2024 R2024%F12A31H

28. MEBERERMT

(@ FEFREXRSB
H ZE2024F12A318 Ik F E - &K
SERYMENEELHESFIESR
FRHEEEMNEEAGENIER
& A E24,252,000/ JT (20234 ¢
14,352,000/ JT) }%24,252,000/% 7T
(20234 : 14,352,0005 7T) °

(b) REBMEETBHNEENET

2024%F
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
s ERITHER HESE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTERT FTERT
7,130 17,957
(3,117) (13,101)
= 24,252
= 1,522
= (1,354)
- (62)
4,013 29,214
T oMFEFN REREERERERAA 171
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31 December 2024
2024F12 A31H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

2023

At 1 January 2023 7R2023F1H1H

Changes from financing cash Bl& IR & K& &
flows

Non-cash changes Bz EE

New leases FHEE

Accretion of interest B R

Early termination of a lease T%ﬁ”ﬁﬂtfﬁ =

Effect of changes in foreign BEHNEE

exchange rates
At 31 December 2023 72023512 H31H

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cashflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities B g EE
Within financing activities J%H@rﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁib
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28.

RERERERME (F)

(b) RKEMETBDNRENEE (F)

2023%

Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FFERITERK HEBE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
10,622 16,024
(8,492) (12,955)

— 14,352
— 518
- (26)

7,130 17,957

(c) HERSARHAHE
u‘f’]\iﬁ/\ ERERNEERER

HAZENT

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FHE T

923 1,013
13,101 12,955
14,024 13,968
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

29.

30.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group was not able to obtain the real estate ownership
certificates for two warehouses located in Mainland China
with costs of HK$653,000 and HK$601,000, respectively.
These two warehouses were fully depreciated in prior
years. As the Group completed the construction of the
relevant warehouses and commenced usage without
obtaining the necessary construction planning permit and
construction commencement permit prior to the
construction and did not complete the filing of the
necessary construction completion reports with the
relevant authorities, the Group may be requested by the
relevant authorities to demolish the construction and can
be subject to a maximum penalty amounting to
approximately RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,418,000) (2023: RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,450,000)). Having considered the current practice of
the relevant authorities and the advice from the Group’s
legal counsel, the directors of the Company believe that it
is not probable that the relevant authorities will impose
the penalty. In addition, the directors of the Company
considered the cost of demolishment of the two
warehouses is not material to the Group. Accordingly, no
provision for the relevant liability has been made.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following contractual commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

eV e g

Property, plant and equipment

29.

30.

A

HARBE

B 220244 K2023F12A31H It F & -
AEBARERMEMLAFERNBHRE
(E B A 9 Bl A653,0007% 7T K%601,0007%
D RBISEHEMBER  ZMmEeE
EERBEFEXETE - ARAEE
EHBEETIYHBEMRA  REE
IR ENERIRAEFAIE
MEETRBEIFAE  TRABHEAE
BRRXMEHM IS THRE UTKE
X EHEBHEERUTREERAEEIFE
EAEEY VARIRESEARK
#91,321,0007T (48 & 41,418,000/ JT)
(20234 : A R #1,321,0007¢ (4 & ®%
1,450,000 L)) - K EZREBE RN E
AERAEBZZBMNERE &
RRAEEHEEHERENTIRNKS
TR I KRB EZRATEZ M ME
BEEMKAHASEL TEKXN - AL
WHENABE A ETIREE -

S
AEERBEBERE THALOEE:

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHT
5,008 3,046
SR BEERZERERAT 173
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2024F12 A31H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
in these financial
the Group had the

(a)

174

balances detailed elsewhere
statements,

following

transactions with related parties based on terms
agreed with respective parties during the year:

Purchase of goods via a supply
chain service provider (note 1)
engaged by a third party supplier

Purchase of goods via a distributor
(note 2)

Logistics and storage costs charged

BEAE=HEERERE
Z—%Tﬁi\ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ%f/\ﬁl
(1) R E &

BB —KHHEE (M aE2)
KEEM

— KB & K W AR 7% e

by a warehouse and logistics 72 (P 753) Y ER 89 0 7%
service provider (note 3) KB fE AR
Original equipment manufacturing KB —XMBE R X EER
processing income from a coffee  (Pff5¥4) K R 1A% &
and tea manufacturer (note 4) s T WA
Notes:
1. The supply chain service provider engaged is a
related company of a substantial shareholder of the
Company.
2. The distributor is a related company of a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

3. The warehouse and logistics service provider is a
related company of a substantial shareholder of the

Company.

4. The coffee and tea manufacturer is a related company
of a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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M. BEBAIRS
(@) BRZSHBHREH i HEmm

R ZHREHRIN FAKEE
EA BB 7 4% ER AR B 5 5 T A IR S
TUTRS

2024 2023
2024 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
21,097 10,432
1,963 1,593
1,249 63
2,557 —

B 35

1. REZBNHERRGHEHERR
ARB—HBETERRN—REB

NEII

2 EOEEAARARA —REERE
B—REIBE QA o

3. HEMERDARBHEEERAAA
Al—REEREN—REH QA
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31 December 2024
202412 A31H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel (b)
of the Group

Short term employee benefits and S HiE B8 7| & H #h 18 7
other benefits

Pension scheme contributions RKE 5T 84 3K
(defined contribution schemes) (REMFKETED
Total compensation paid to key MEZBERBAESN

management personnel e P

Further details of directors’ remuneration are
disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

-2

&

31. BBARS (&)

AEEBFTEEEAENETM
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T T I
15,330 15,499
927 870
16,257 16,369

WA EEHH S KU HBEN
EOR T -

iF +

k2
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

32. EMTH — BEANED
RBEMER SHELBTANEHEE

176

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period N
are as follows:
Financial assets TREE

As at 31 December 2024 720245128318
Derivative financial instruments T4 4 g T A 96 - 96
Trade receivables Z 5 WA - 100,707 100,707
Financial assets included in TABNFIE ek
prepayments, deposits and Hi W FRIBEN S5
other receivables BE - 6,340 6,340
Cash and cash equivalents RekBELFEY - 170,446 170,446
96 277,493 277,589
As at 31 December 2023 A2023%F12H31H
Trade receivables B 5 WA - 115,169 115,169
Financial assets included in STABRMAGE Rk
prepayments, deposits and Hh fEW IR € &l
other receivables BE - 5218 5,218
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY - 253,752 253,752
- 374,139 374,139
*  Mandatorily designated as such * GRHIIEE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2024

2024412 A31H
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. €@ I B — ®RE3 &5 (&)
(Continued)
Financial liabilities ctREE
As at 31 December 2024 720245128318
Trade payables B 5 kR - 77,250 77,250
Financial liabilities included in T AERT R R E b fE
accruals and other payables RREMNEREE - 35,231 35,231
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t & R 17 & % - 4,013 4,013
Lease liabilities HEEBE = 29,214 29,214
= 145,708 145,708
As at 31 December 2023 72023512 A31H
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ g T A 161 — 161
Trade payables B 5 R 5IE - 63,360 63,360
Financial liabilities included in FTAEERIE R E M E
accruals and other payables FREHNEHEE - 35,604 35,604
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &8 iR 17 & - 7,130 7,130
Lease liabilities HEBE - 17,957 17,957
161 124,051 124,212
* Held for trading CHERRSMEA
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33.

178

FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
accruals and other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

receivables,

reasonably approximate to their carrying

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits
have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using the rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
a creditworthy bank with no recent history of default.
Derivative financial instruments, including foreign currency
swaps, are measured using valuation techniques similar to
swap models, The
models incorporate various market observable inputs
including credit quality of counterparty and exchange
rates. The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
swaps are the same as their fair values.

using present value calculations.
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31 December 2024

2024412 A31A
33. FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE 3. eRITEANAFERATFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TERAFALEESRTANAFEGE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &4 :
Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value BAFHEITENEE (BE)
Derivative financial fTEe@MIT A
instruments
As at 31 December 2024 720245
12A31H = 96 = 96
As at 31 December 2023 720234
12A318 - (161) - (161)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN - F-EBEHF_EsHAMEERA
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no FEFE BE-ZENEEARELS
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets BMEERSBEE (2023F | £) -

and financial liabilities (2023: Nil).
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34.

180

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents, interest-bearing bank borrowings
and lease liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance the Group’s operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency forward contracts.
The purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from
sales and purchases of goods.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

credit risk and

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing
bank borrowings with floating interest rates. Management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

MHERABEEEERBER(E

Interest rate risk (Continued) = @ b (42)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRAAEMBEEMEELFTTIEER

reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents).

(decrease) in

T REBERB SN MRS IEA]
REEBNHRE CBBYTSRITERA
LR RBASEEDNTE) -

Increase/
Increase/(decrease)

basis points in profit before tax
22 EFH
(FF%) BR B A 0% R 18 0O &)
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HKS$ 7T 50 125 149
HK$ 77T (50) (125) (149)
RMB AR 50 109 145
RMB AR (50) (109) (145)
Foreign currency risk S R B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies. The majority of the Group’s foreign
currency purchase transactions are denominated in United
States dollar (“US$”). On the other hand, the Group’s
sales and disbursements are mainly denominated in HK$
and RMB. As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not
anticipate significant movements in the US$/HK$
exchange rate and the corresponding exposure on foreign
currency risk is not material.

AEBERAGRZERRER - ZERRE
EmMNKEBEUNEDRER NI ZE
BETEEMELE AKSEAHDINE
RBERXZUAET(ETDFAE - -7
o AEENHEERIHENTIEABT
MAREFE - ARBITEZTHE
AREBERETHABTHEXRS A& H
REAREE  HEME RIS R R IL T
EPNL
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34.

182

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group’s risk management principles with regard to its
foreign currency denominated monetary assets, liabilities,
commitments, and cash flows is to match as far as
possible the values of such assets and cash flows against
similarly denominated liabilities and cash flows. Decisions
on either holding net short or long positions in foreign
currency denominated monetary assets or liabilities are
taken on case-by-case basis and by taking into
consideration the amount and duration of the exposures,
market volatility, economic trends and requirements of the
business.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the Euro (“EUR”), Swiss Franc (“SFR”) and RMB exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (arising from EUR, SFR and
RMB denominated financial instruments).

If HK$ weakens against EUR WmEBTHBTRE

If HK$ strengthens against EUR i & /8 T 5 BT FHE

If HK$ weakens against SFR a8 i in Bz E

If HK$ strengthens against SFR it & 7 7T 34, ¥ BE FHE

If HK$ weakens against RMB W& BT AR
B21E

If HK$ strengthens against RMB  fifi & 78 7T 5, A R 8
1A
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BHEEAREEBRREEE)

SN LB (AE)
AEBHUIMEHENEREE 86 -
EEREeRENREREERR  5F
ErkzEEER R REEBLUGE
MEEMRERENEER REBEFINE
AAENEBREERRETAFEREX
HRERE  DREARERLRE
MR BB MR TI5KE  EESB
EREHBERMMEDL -

TREINBEMREFREHBEES
FABBRT - A% E R AGF 3
BT (TR TT)) ~ 3 £OERB (3R BB 1) B A
REEXNSEAEZEHNGEE (AR
oW ARBHESRTIAESE) -

Increase/
(decrease) in
exchange rate

Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax

2z AR

(T B&) B Bt A% F 38 A0 OGRt 2>)
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
5% 49 79
(5)% (49) (79)
5% (127) (266)
(5)% 127 266
5% 29 62
(5)% (29) (62)
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. FEERRBREEEERBE(EZ)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades on credit term only with recognised
and/or creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2024

Trade receivables* g 5 EdE =
Financial assets included in SFABEMEE K
prepayments, deposits and N H A & W R IE

other receivables — normal" WS REE —

FERRE
AEBEERRUTEEERINE=7
BEEHETRS AEERERE -
REREEHETRINEF HAER
FERERF U AREREERE
WOk R A B o

BAR R FRE TR

TRIFABREAEENEERRNEER
EELHBEERRIEHEOZARR
TEZENEBENER AR (BRIEBHM
BERMBAFTHBZRAXE ) UKk
R12ABTEMF RSB -CE2EBMESER
MEMEERMTMARE -

Ro024F 12H31H

= = 106,206 106,206

EE 6,340 = = = 6,340
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 170,446 - - - 170,446
176,786 = = 106,206 282,992
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

4. BHEABREEEERBEK(A)

EERK(EZ)
RABEBRELA TR (E)
R2023412H31H

184

Further quantitative data in
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

12-month
ECLs
1218 A T8 88
FEER
Stage 1
EL
HK$'000
FET
Trade receivables* B 5 WA -
Financial assets included in FABMRE B
prepayments, deposits and Rt JE M5B
other receivables — normal'  H4BEE —
a0 5,218
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 253,752
258,970

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 15 to the financial
statement.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

respect of the Group’s

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

Lifetime ECLs

2HEHEESE
Simplified

Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
& E=R Rl abrA @
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FTERT TERT TERT FET
- - 126,252 126,252

- - - 5218

- - - 253,752

- - 126,252 385,222

* AL BERBBCREEZNE S R
BME REBEEEMETNERR
B 75 R KT E 159 5 -

" SEABENRA - e RE M ERRIAR
EREENEEEREHMAAMS B

HERIARKIEIE MR ABIER] - B
AleRMEENEEIRBRRRIRE] -

FHASEXRBEZREKENEERR
REE—TEBLBE RBEEUKEH
B FE154% % ©
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31 December 2024

Since the Group trades on credit term, only with
recognised and/or creditworthy third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations of
credit risk as 14% (2023: 15%) and 44% (2023: 46%) of
the Group’s total trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate
funds to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms. In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group has been maintaining a cash pooling system where
excess liquidity is centralised internally through
inter-group accounts. Depending on the specific
requirements of each funding agreement, funding for the
Group’s operating companies may be sourced directly
from the Group’s bankers or indirectly through the
Company.

2024912 A31H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. HBEAKEEEEREE ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BARBRERN 7K (E)

HRAAEBERLRAR HEERI
MEBE-ZFEREERETRS  FIUES
KiF@ - EESFREBRDIERER HFH
EE - MMEMER AEEE—EMNE
BEEFRRER - H 5l A14% (20235 : 15% )
K 44% (20235 : 46% ) + Ty & L 7K & B
BEBELENERNEBEARAREBAN

TRIA e

R E SR

AEENBERBRETREES WM E
HERALRARDESER - REER
BETER AEE-—EBEHEFRSBER
B BEEARFRERP VA TS
PEFGHNRDEE BIFTETHE
MERBERME AKENZLERFA
HEEBAASENAERRITHEERBEBAR

NRABMEER -

ZNFEFH ERBERERARAE 185
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows.

31 December 2024

RBESER(E)
REERRAEEEHAERESOR

RN R BB

2024%12H31H

//EUZD—F ©

M. BEEREEEERBE(E)

Trade payables =Y AN 77,250 - - 77,250
Financial liabilities T AR RIE K
included in accruals  E {th fE R IE
and other payables MemaE 35,231 - - 35,231
Interest-bearing bank & B R {7 & &
borrowings 4,013 = = 4,013
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,310 9,904 18,371 31,585
119,804 9,904 18,371 148,079
31 December 2023 2023%12531H
On demand/
less than 3 to 12 More than
3 months months 1 year Total
wmER
3EAR 3E12f A Z 1 &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FA&T FET
Trade payables Z 5 B IR 63,360 - — 63,360
Financial liabilities FFAFERT I K&
included in accruals  EH fib &~ Z 18
and other payables MNeFAaE 35,604 — — 35,604
Interest-bearing bank & B R 1T & &
borrowings 7,130 — - 7,130
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,179 5,080 11,489 19,748
109,273 5,080 11,489 125,842
186 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34 GEEREEEERKE(EZ)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is required to comply with certain externally
imposed capital requirements as set out in certain
banking facility letters. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
the ratio of interest-bearing bank borrowings to total
shareholders’ equity. Total shareholders’ equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to owners of the
parent. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank borrowings & B R 1T &K

Total equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Gearing ratio EABELE

A

EXEHE
AEBEREANBERZARREREARE
BEFELE AHFREEALEN
XRHEXKMEERSBRRERB-

AEEEBHEALE UREBEEMR
MG REHEEENRRFREHE
TR - BEFXARERERE  ~5H
AHEeHEINTREORE  MRE
REERLBEITHRGD - NEBEEST
A& TIRITRLVEE AT E Y E T 530 5 A0
BB AR TE - B 220245 N2023F 127
SIHLEFEYEHEEEANERE K
KRB BEEHEE o

AEBEFERERNABL X (B RBRITE
Y RESEENLR)EREN - I
RESABRBREARES ARERE
MEFEE AEENERERBEALR
B RERFNAENRFE -

RBEPRNERABELRMOT

B RBHEE ANEHRERR

2024 2023
2024F 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
4,013 7,130
509,661 590,436
0.8% 1.2%
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. & 72 7] K9 Bf % AR i &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

AR AR R R 0 B A AR R B R

188

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: mr
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’°000 HK$'000
F#& T FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E R 3,007 4,620
Deposit birgca 296 296
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIHNEE 78,563 78,563
Total non-current assets FEREBEERT 81,866 83,479
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and deposits ERRERES 213 183
Due from subsidiaries JE W Bt B8 & A 336,681 341,641
Tax recoverable A Yy 8] F 18 - 151
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 1,151 2,816
Total current assets RBEELE 338,045 344,791
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Accruals & 5T FIA 2,290 2,020
Lease liabilities HEBAE 1,625 1,525
Tax payable JE < B 18 70 -
Total current liabilities MEBEERE 3,985 3,545
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 334,060 341,246
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT B ERABEAERE
LIABILITIES 415,926 424,725
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES knBERE
Lease liabilities MEBE 1,489 3,114
Net assets EEFE 414,437 421,611
EQUITY =
Issued capital B EITRAR 72,073 72,073
Reserves (note) & (M aE) 342,364 349,538
Total equity SRR 414,437 421,611
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. A Bl B R K (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B

ﬁﬂ:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AArfEBEBOBERNT :

At 1 January 2023 202351 A1H 215,402 123,578 24,803 363,783

Total comprehensive income for  FE 2@ W A 4258

the year — — 14,800 14,800
Dividends % 8 - - (29,045) (29,045)
At 31 December 2023 and #R2023F12A31H

at 1 January 2024 }2024F1/1H 215,402 123,578 10,558 349,538

Total comprehensive income for  FE 2@ W A 4%

the year = = 128,684 128,684
Dividends f% 8 - - (135,858) (135,858)
At 31 December 2024 MR2024F12 A31H 215,402 123,578 3,384 342,364
36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 36. HMIEBMBHE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised Bf 75 3R R 7R2025F 36 R EE S g it &
for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2025. N RET)E -
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEBERBERFATBRFENEEALREE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the MEERE (HFECTIRLEXT KRR
[

published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out below.

REEEYN/ERDB)HIMT -

A SUMMARY OF RESULTS FEBE

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A3MALEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20244 20234 20224 20214 20204
(HK$000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F&x) (F&x) (FHx) (F&Fx) (FHrn)
REVENUE L @N 721,117 728,930 695,938 766,793 638,507
Cost of sales HE AR (475,157)  (488,377)  (461,176)  (467,815) (375,453
Gross profit EF 245,960 240,553 234,762 298,978 263,054
Other income and gains, net  H AU A K& & F 58 17,323 5,937 11,252 2,216 15,491
Selling and distribution HERDHRAE
expenses (101,962)  (102,829)  (104,437)  (118,561)  (107,223)
General and administrative —RERITEEX
expenses (80,784) (79,328) (79,237) (77,215) (74,261)
Other expenses, net HAth A S 5 58 (4,717) (4,295) (4,209) (3,958) (3,841)
Finance costs B & A (1,779) (1,040) (892) (864) (1,441)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR 3% AT 5 R 74,041 58,998 57,239 100,596 91,779
Taxation BiIE (14,950) (10,287) (9,815) (20,352) (14,982)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FrEF 59,091 48,711 47,424 80,244 76,797

190
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LFEMBRE (&)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current assets MEEE

Current liabilities mEaE

Net current assets MBEEFE

Non-current liabilities ERBAEE

Net assets BEETE

EQUITY &

Equity attributable to owners of &R AIHEH A FE(L
the parent =

2024
2024
(HK$°000)
(F#&x)

227,457
452,714
(144,706)
308,008
(25,804)
509,661

509,661

2021
20214
(HK$'000)
(F&7x)

182,278
580,168
(152,707)
427 461
(21,219)
588,520

588,520

EERAEE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
(HK$°000)  (HK$’000)
(FEL) (F&EL)
217,654 212,717
517,463 517,854
(125,926)  (143,264)
391,537 374,590
(18,755) (12,071)
590,436 575,236
590,436 575,236
T FF

2020
20204F
(HK$’000)
(F&7T)

162,020
522,720
(121,485)
401,235

(10,752)
552,503

552,503
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LFEMBRE (&)

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

EEUHEEER

As at and for the year ended 31 December
M12A3ME R EE12A31BLFE

2024
20244
Profitability ratios BRgE =
Return on equity 1 %5 O] 3RO 11.6%
Return on assets® & E B ;@ 8.7%
Liquidity ratios REBESLL X
Current ratio® 7t &) b O 3.1
Quick ratio® RB) L @ 2.0
Capital adequacy ratios X A&ZFELL=
Gearing ratio® BEEBELERO 0.8%
Net cash to equity ratio® IR & FHEHE
& © 32.7%

Notes:

1)

192

Return on equity represents profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent as of the end of the same year.

Return on assets represents profit for the year as a percentage
of total assets as of the end of the same period.

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities
as of the end of the year.

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by
current liabilities as of the end of the year.

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Total debt represents interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Net cash to equity ratio equals net cash divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent at the end of the year. Net
cash represents cash and cash equivalents less interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

2023 2022 2021 2020
20234 20224 20214 20204
8.3% 8.2% 13.6% 13.9%
6.6% 6.5% 10.5% 11.2%
41 3.6 3.8 4.3
3.1 2.2 2.7 3.3
1.2% 1.8% 0.5% 2.2%
41.8% 31.1% 45.7% 47.9%
=

)

HEaEmETG AR A ARG FEENRE
FREBARHEBABRERENALD -

BENREFEENERBPREELENT
DL e

MBLELERERFRORDEERARD B

f& -

BB EBERFROREEERTERIA
mBAIE -

BERBUEXAERNEBEBE AT ARE
BARGEHER B EREFTERITER

ReFB R XEERFRNESIFER
NERARHEEAELRES R FEERS
RBREFEYRBRITER
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(Incorporated under the laws of Bermuda with limited liability)
(RIEBFELFIEMRLNBRLR)
Stock Code BR7 L35 : 2119
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